

# BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for Approval of Revised Tariffs.

Case No. 09-315-HT-ATA

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for Authority to Issue Three (3) Promissory Long-Term Notes.

Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for Approval of an Arrangement with an Existing Customer.

Case No. 09-441-HT-AEC

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for Approval of a Modification to an Existing Arrangement.

Case No. 09-442-HC-AEC

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for an Emergency Increase in its Rates and Charges for Steam and Hot Water Service.

Case No. 09-453-HT-AEM

## REPLY BRIEF OF AKRON THERMAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

2003 AUG -4 AH 11: 26

RECEIVED-DOCKETING DIV

Barth E. Royer
Bell & Royer Co., LPA
33 South Grant Avenue
Columbus, OH 43215-3927
(614) 228-0704 - Phone
(614) 228-0201 - Fax
BarthRoyer@aol.com - Email

This is to certify that the images appearing are an accurate and complete reproduction of a case file document delivered in the regular course of business.

Technician Date Processed 8-4-09

Thomas Mullooly
Foley & Lardner, LLP
777 East Wisconsin Avenue
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
414-297-5566 - Phone
TMullooly@foley.com - Email

Attorneys for Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

				Page No.
I.	INTRO	DDUCT	ION	1
П.	ARGU	MENT		. 5
	A.	STAFF	BRIEF	5
		1.	The Staff recommendation that Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief be denied is inconsistent with long-standing Commission precedent and ignores the limitations on scope of the Commission's authority in emergency rate proceedings.	. 5
		2.	The Commission has never deemed the fact that the financial information presented by an applicant utility to demonstrate the existence of an emergency has not been audited by Staff or an outside auditor to be an impediment to granting emergency rate relief.	9
		3.	There will be no follow-on permanent rate case if Akron Thermal application for emergency rate relief is denied.	<u>'s</u> 12
		4.	The Commission should not make the unprecedented decision to force a Commission-regulated public utility to cease operations based on Staff's bare assertion that turning back the system to the City represents a better alternative than granting Akron Thermal's request for emergency rate relief.	
		5.	The Staff position that Akron Thermal's financing application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS should be denied is not supported by the record, logic, or the law.	16
	B.	CITY I	BRIEF	
		1.	Although the City and Akron Thermal agree upon the standards that must be met by a utility seeking emergency rate relief, the City would have the Commission apply those standards in a manner that is inconsistent with long-standing Commission precedent.	21
			The City's retroactive ratemaking argument ignores the basis upon which the amount of Akron Thermal's emergency rate request was calculated.	26

		]	Page No.
	3.	The City's argument that Akron Thermal failed to secure all necessary Commission approvals that were a condition to the Plan of Reorganization becoming effective is without merit.	27
	4.	Akron Thermal currently has no special contracts that have not either been approved by the Commission or filed with the Commission for approval.	27
C.	SUM	MIT COUNTY BRIEF	
	1.	Section 4909.154, Revised Code, has no application in this setting.	28
	2.	The Section 4905.22, Revised Code, requirement that the rates charged by a utility be "shall be just and reasonable" does not open the door to a finding by the Commission that proposed rates are unjust and unreasonable simply by virtue of the fact that the proposed rates are substantially higher than the utility's current rates.	33
	3.	Summit County's calculation of the impact the proposed emergency increase would have on its annual cost of steam service is incorrect and grossly overstates the effect of the propose increase.	<u>ad</u> 30
CON	CLUSIO	ON	36

III.

# BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the Application of

Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for

Approval of Revised Tariffs.

Case No. 09-315-HT-ATA

In the Matter of the Application of :

Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for

Authority to Issue Three (3) Promissory

Long-Term Notes.

Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS

In the Matter of the Application of

Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for

Approval of an Arrangement with an

Existing Customer.

Case No. 09-441-HT-AEC

In the Matter of the Application of

Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership for Approval of a Modification to an

Existing Arrangement.

Case No. 09-442-HC-AEC

In the Matter of the Application of Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership

for an Emergency Increase in its Rates and Charges for Steam and Hot Water

Service.

Case No. 09-453-HT-AEM

## REPLY BRIEF OF AKRON THERMAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

### I. INTRODUCTION

Initial post-hearing briefs were filed herein on July 28, 2009 by the Akron Thermal,
Limited Partnership ("Akron Thermal" or the "company"), the Commission staff ("Staff"), and
intervenors the city of Akron ("City"), Children's Hospital Medical Center ("Children's
Hospital"), Canal Place, Ltd. ("Canal Place"), County of Summit, Ohio ("Summit County") and

David Wehrle, in his capacity as Trustee for the Creditor's Trust for Akron Thermal ("Trustee"). In its initial brief, Akron Thermal demonstrated that it has met each of the long-standing criteria established and used by this Commission to evaluate emergency rate increase applications, and urged the Commission to grant its application for emergency relief in Case No. 09-453-HT-AEM, as well as its other pending applications in Case Nos. 09-315-HT-ATA, 09-414-HT-AIS, 09-441-HT-AEC, and 09-442-HC-AEC, which have been consolidated with the emergency case for hearing and decision. In this reply brief, Akron Thermal will address, in detail, the arguments advanced by Staff, the City, and Summit County in their initial briefs, but will begin with a short summary of the respective positions of Staff and the intervenors so as to identify the issues that are actually in dispute in connection with each of the applications now before the Commission.

As emphasized in Akron Thermal's initial brief, Staff does not dispute that Akron

Thermal faces a financial emergency as a result of the loss of the University of Akron ("UA") as
a customer, nor does Staff dispute that, without emergency rate relief, Akron Thermal will be
financially imperiled and its ability to render service will be impaired. However, consistent with
the recommendation of its witness Puican, Staff, on brief, argues that the application for
emergency rate relief in Case No. 09-453-HT-AEM should be denied because of the possibility
that granting the emergency rate increase might ultimately drive other customers off the system,
thereby creating a death spiral scenario. Notwithstanding that the forbearance agreement entered
into by the holders of the three promissory notes that are the subject of the application in Case
No. 09-414-HT-AIS has removed the sole basis for Staff witness Mahmud's original
recommendation that the application be denied, Staff continues to oppose approval of this
application based on its position that the emergency increase should be denied. However, Staff,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Compare Staff Ex. 3, at 4 with Staff Ex. 4, at 2.

consistent with the record recommendations of Mr. Puican, supports approval of the tariff amendment application in Case Nos. 09-315-HT-ATA and the contract approval applications in Case Nos. 09-441-HT-AEC and 09-442-HC-AEC.

In its brief, the City argues against approval Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief in Case No. 09-453-HT-AEM and its financing application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS. Although the City's brief is silent with respect to the remaining three applications, the City specifically cautions that its failure to address these applications should not be read as indication that it supports or does not object to these applications.

Children's Hospital's brief advocates approval of its special contract with Akron Thermal - the subject of the application in Case No. 09-441-HT-AEC - and argues that the alternative tariff mechanism initially proposed by Akron Thermal for recovering the emergency rate increase from Children's Hospital and Canal Place in addition to tariff customers should be rejected.<sup>2</sup> The Children's Hospital brief also contains the bare statement that Children's Hospital opposes the emergency rate increase application in Case No. 09-453-HT-AEC, but does not contain any argument in support of that position. Canal Place, based on arguments that are similar to those advanced by Children's Hospital, takes the same position with respect to approval of the modification to its existing contract with Akron Thermal that is before the Commission in Case No. 09-442-HC-AEC and the alternative surcharge proposed in Akron Thermal's emergency application. However, Canal Place expressly states that it takes no position with respect to the emergency rate increase application.<sup>3</sup> Neither intervenor has addressed the applications in Case Nos. 09-315-HT-ATA and 09-414-HT-AIS.

Children' Hospital Brief, 3-6. Canal Place Brief, 2-9.

As previously noted, Staff has recommended approval of the Children's Hospital and Canal Place contracts, and, notwithstanding the caveat in the City's brief, no party has opposed approval of these applications. Further, Akron Thermal has withdrawn the alternative demand charge adder contained in its application for emergency rate increase application. Thus, apart from the bare statement in the Children's Hospital brief that it opposes the emergency application, there are no matters in dispute between Children's Hospital and Canal Place, on the one hand, and Akron Thermal, on the other. Accordingly, Akron Thermal will not address these briefs further herein.

In its initial brief, Summit County opposes Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief, but does not address the other four applications. Summit County offers three arguments with respect to the emergency application. As discussed *infra*, two of these arguments rely on statutes that have no application in this setting, while the third goes to the impact granting the application would have on Summit County's financial situation. Although Akron Thermal in no way intends to minimize the financial difficulties Summit County, like many other local governmental entities, faces in these dire economic times, Summit County's calculation of the dollar impact the proposed emergency increase would have on its cost of steam service is incorrect and grossly overstates the increase in the steam costs to which it would be subject if the emergency application is approved.

Finally, Akron Thermal is in complete agreement with the positions set forth in the Trustee's brief. Although Akron Thermal will touch on those positions in addressing certain arguments advanced by the Staff and the City, Akron Thermal will not separately discuss the Trustee's brief in its reply brief.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> App. Ex. 5, at 11.

### II. ARGUMENT

#### A. STAFF BRIEF

1. The Staff recommendation that Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief be denied is inconsistent with long-standing Commission precedent and ignores the limitations on scope of the Commission's authority in emergency rate proceedings.

Staff does not dispute that Akron Thermal has met the criteria that the Commission routinely applies in evaluating applications for emergency rate relief. Indeed, staff does not even mention these criteria in its brief. Rather, Staff, relying on its witness Puican's death spiral argument, urges the Commission to deny Akron Thermal's emergency application because "the state of knowledge is such that it cannot be determined whether an emergency increase would help or hurt the situation." In other words. Staff asks the Commission to ignore the undisputed evidence – evidence that includes the testimony of its own witness<sup>6</sup> – that Akron Thermal faces a financial emergency as a result of the loss of UA as a customer and that, without emergency rate relief. Akron Thermal will be financially imperiled and its ability to render service will be impaired, and deny the emergency application based on the possibility that granting the proposed increase might ultimately drive other customers off the system. Apparently recognizing that this result would be inconsistent with the criteria heretofore applied by the Commission in considering requests for emergency rate relief. Staff simply ignores these criteria and, instead, claims that an unprecedented decision to force Akron Thermal to cease operations is within the "very broad emergency powers" conferred upon the Commission by Section 4909.16, Revised Code.8

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Staff Brief, 11.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Tr. II, 138-139.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Staff Brief, 11.

<sup>8</sup> Staff Brief, 10.

Akron Thermal does not dispute that the Commission has broad discretion in determining whether an emergency exists. However, where, as here, the record clearly shows that an emergency exists, it would be an abuse of that discretion for the Commission to conclude that the mere possibility that granting the requested emergency rate relief might drive some customers off the system outweighs the certainty that Akron Thermal will be forced to cease operations if its emergency application is denied. As Akron Thermal noted in its initial brief, Staff witness Puican has not conducted the customer-by-customer analysis that would be necessary to provide a concrete basis for his concern that granting Akron Thermal's emergency request would lead to a death spiral scenario. 10 Yet, on brief, Staff goes so far as to affirmatively claim that "a death spiral is unfolding before us." Although it is obviously true that the proposed emergency surcharge will not generate the projected revenues if Akron Thermal were to lose its largest customers. Staff ignores that the customers it has identified as being at risk will not be subject to the emergency surcharge. Summa Health System Hospitals ("Summa"), which is now Akron Thermal's largest customer is not a tariff customer, and, in view of its alternative fuel capability, will never be a tariff customer. 12 The other customers identified by Staff - Canal Place and Children's Hospital – are special contact customers, not tariff customers. Although Akron Thermal had included an alternative emergency surcharge in its application that was designed to apply if the Commission determined that the emergency rate increase should be recovered from

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> See, e.g., Cambridge v. Pub. Util. Comm., 159 Ohio St. 88 (1953); Manufacturer's Light and Heat Co., 163 Ohio St. 570 (1955).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Akron Thermal Brief, 36-37.

<sup>11</sup> Staff Brief, 13.

As Akron Thermal witness Pucak explained, Summa, which was a City customer before Akron Thermal began operating the system, has alternative fuel capability and can use its own system to meet its heating needs. Tr. I, 131-133. Thus, Summa has been served pursuant to a long-standing arrangement under which the price charged by Akron Thermal is based on Summa's avoided costs. *Id.* Mr. Pucak indicated that Akron Thermal had insisted that this arrangement be reduced to a written contract and that, at the time of the hearing, the parties were negotiating a contract that would memorialize the terms of the existing arrangement. Tr. I, 131-132. Those negotiations have since been completed, and Akron Thermal has this date filed an application with the Commission for approval of the Summa contract in Case No. 09-681-HT-AEC.

Canal Place and Children's Hospital in addition to tariff customers, Akron Thermal has since withdrawn the proposed alternative surcharge. <sup>13</sup> Thus, Canal Place and Children's Hospital will not be subject to the proposed emergency rate increase. As Akron Thermal acknowledged in its initial brief, the possibility obviously exists that one or more tariff customers could leave the system if the Commission were to grant the emergency relief requested by the company. However, to assess the likelihood of that happening, one would have to know whether the customer in question had the capital available to invest in the facilities that would be required to change its energy source, and, if the customer did have the necessary capital, whether the conversion would make economic sense. <sup>14</sup> One would also have to know whether the loss of the revenue from a customer that did elect to leave the system would, in fact, necessitate a filing for additional rate relief. <sup>15</sup> In view of the foregoing, it cannot be fairly said that "a death spiral is now unfolding," and Staff's suggestion that granting the requested emergency relief will inevitably lead to the Akron Thermal's collapse is pure conjecture.

In this same vein, Staff's assertion that Akron Thermal is doomed "because rates cannot be set that would provide a stable, sustainable basis for this utility to operate" is belied by Staff witness Hodgden's rebuttal testimony. In his rebuttal testimony, Mr. Hodgden specifically stated that, with the forbearance agreement entered into by the holders of the promissory notes that are the subject of the application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS, his estimate of the rate increase Akron Thermal could justify in the follow-on permanent rate case would be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and service its debt. Although acknowledging Mr. Hodgden's change of position, Staff witness Puican continued to cling to his death spiral hypothesis as the basis for his

<sup>13</sup> App. Ex. 5, at 11.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Akron Thermal Brief, 36.

<sup>15</sup> LA

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Staff Brief, 13.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Staff Ex. 2, at 4.

recommendation that Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief should be denied. <sup>18</sup>
It is unthinkable that this Commission would make the unprecedented decision to force a utility that has met the applicable standards for an emergency rate increase to cease operations based on a mere hypothesis.

Although Section 4909.16, Revised Code, vests the Commission with broad discretionary powers in determining when an emergency exists and in tailoring a remedy which will enable the applicant public utility to meet that emergency, 19 the discretion conferred upon the Commission by the statute does not permit the Commission to exercise authority beyond that specifically delegated to it by the legislature under the guise that it is acting within its emergency powers. As argued in Akron Thermal's initial brief, a deliberate decision by the Commission to force Akron Thermal to cease operations would be tantamount to a Commission-ordered abandonment, notwithstanding that the statute governing abandonment of service, Section 4905.21, Revised Code, contains no provision authorizing the Commission to order an abandonment. 20 In this same vein, a deliberate decision by the Commission to force Akron Thermal to turn back the system to the City would be tantamount to an order terminating Akron Thermal's lease, and would constitute a taking of Akron Thermal's property rights. Again, the Commission has no statutory authority to order a utility to terminate a lease, and, notwithstanding that turning back the system to the City is Staff's preferred outcome, the Commission has no authority to do something under its emergency powers that it cannot do under the authority specifically delegated to it by the legislature. Finally, Ohio law is clear that, in a permanent rate proceeding, the Commission is duty-bound to set rates pursuant to the statutory ratemaking formula, and

<sup>18</sup> Staff Ex. 6, at 2-3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> See, e.g., Cambridge v. Pub. Util. Comm., 159 Ohio St. 88 (1953); Manufacturer's Light and Heat Co., 163 Ohio St. 570 (1955)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Akron Thermal Brief, 34.

cannot alter that formula based on concerns regarding the impact the resulting rate increase would have on customers. Staff witness Hodgden's rebuttal testimony shows that his estimate of the revenue increase that Akron Thermal could justify in a follow-on permanent rate increase would, in light of the forbearance agreement, be sufficient to cover the company's operating costs and service its debt. Staff asserts that granting Akron Thermal's request for emergency relief will not guarantee its long-term viability, and suggests that the virtue of denying the emergency rate increase is that it will spare customers from burdensome rate increases that will not ensure the company's survival. However, a deliberate decision by the Commission to deny rate relief based on the unknown impact that future rate increases would have on customers is beyond the Commission's statutory ratemaking authority.

2. The Commission has never deemed the fact that the financial information presented by an applicant utility to demonstrate the existence of an emergency has not been audited by Staff or an outside auditor to be an impediment to granting emergency rate relief.

Staff points out that, in view of the time constraints associated with an emergency proceeding, Staff has not performed an audit of Akron Thermal's books, and also observes that the financial information presented by Akron Thermal to demonstrate that an emergency exists has not been subject to an outside audit. Staff then states that, because there has been no external review of Akron Thermal's financial data, "there is no real reason to accept the accuracy of any accounting value in this record," and goes on to characterize the financial data submitted by Akron Thermal as being "doubtful." With all due respect, this is nonsense.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> See Columbus S. Power Co. v. Pub. Util. Comm., 67 Ohio St.3d 535, 537-543 (1993).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> Staff Ex. 2, at 4-5.

<sup>Staff Brief, 10-11.
Staff Brief, 11.</sup> 

First, the time constraints in this proceeding are no different than the time constraints typically associated with emergency rate cases. Indeed, Section 4909.16, Revised Code, applications for temporary rate increases are filed because the applicant utility needs immediate rate relief. Akron Thermal is not aware of any instances in which the Staff performed a fullblown, rate case-type audit of the financial information submitted by an applicant for emergency rate relief, but even if there were a few isolated instances when this occurred, it is certainly not Staff's normal practice to conduct such an audit in emergency cases. Second, there is no statute or Commission rule that requires a Commission-regulated public utility to engage an external auditor to perform an audit of its financial statements.<sup>25</sup> In fact, most smaller Ohio utilities do not engage outside auditors to provide an opinion with respect to the accuracy of their accounting records. Third, even those utilities that are subject to external audit requirements by virtue of their corporate status might very well not have current externally-audited financial statements available to present in an emergency rate case, depending on the relationship between the date of the most recent audit opinion and the date the emergency application was filed. Fourth, the Staff, in the Staff Report in Akron Thermal's 2005 rate case, specifically stated that Akron Thermal's plant ledgers and continuing property records represented a reliable source of original cost data, 26 and there is no reason to suspect that the 2008 financial statements presented by Akron Thermal witness Stott are not similarly reliable. Fifth, although Staff obviously did not conduct the in-depth investigation that it would perform in a permanent rate case, Staff did issue information requests to Akron Thermal in connection with the financial information presented in the emergency application. Akron Thermal fully responded to these requests, and no Staff witness in this proceeding even remotely suggested that the accuracy of these responses

The one exception would be the Commission-ordered external GCR financial audits of natural gas companies (see Rule 4901:1-14-07, Ohio Administrative Code), but this obviously does not apply to Akron Thermal.

Staff Report of Investigation, Case No. 05-05-HT-AIR, 4.

were in any way suspect. Fifth, to the extent Staff's comment regarding "the company's unaudited assertions" goes to Ms. Stott's cash flow projections and her calculation of the savings associated with the various cost-reduction measures implemented by Akron Thermal to mitigate the emergency, an external audit would not have addressed the accuracy of these estimates in any event.

Finally, and most importantly, this Commission has never deemed the fact that the financial information presented by the applicant in an emergency rate proceeding has not been audited by the Staff or by an external auditor to be an impediment to granting emergency relief. Rather, as a review of the Commission's decisions on emergency rate applications will show, the Commission understands full well that, at least in the majority of cases, the applicant's financial evidence of an emergency has not been subject to a staff audit. Indeed, this is precisely what led the Commission to establish its oft-repeated "strictest scrutiny" standard for evaluating the applicant's evidence in emergency rate applications:

(A)pplicant's evidence will be reviewed with strictest scrutiny and that evidence must clearly and convincingly demonstrate the presence of extraordinary circumstances which constitute a genuine emergency situation.<sup>28</sup>

Despite Staff's attempt on brief to muddy the waters with its unfounded and ill-conceived assertions regarding the reliability of the financial information presented by Akron Thermal in support of its request for emergency relief, there can be no question that Akron Thermal has clearly and convincingly demonstrated that it faces a genuine financial emergency. Staff's own witness, Mr. Puican, specifically testified that, if the Commission denies Akron Thermal's application, Akron Thermal will no longer be able to provide service to its customers and would

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> Staff Brief, 12.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> See, e.g., Toledo Edison Company, Case No. 84-1286-EL-AEM (Supplemental Opinion and Order dated May 12, 1987), at 4.

be forced to cease operations.<sup>29</sup> If Staff truly believed that Akron Thermal witness Stott's cash flow projections and savings calculations were "doubtful," Staff could have challenged them by cross-examining Ms. Stott on these subjects. Alternatively, Staff could have proposed adjustments to the applicant's projections and estimates, just as it has in numerous other emergency cases.<sup>30</sup> Either of these measures would have meant that the Commission would have had to weigh the evidence to determine if Akron Thermal had clearly and convincingly demonstrated that an emergency exists and whether the proposed emergency rate increase is minimum amount necessary to avert the emergency. However, in this record, there is no competing evidence to weigh. In fact, Mr. Puican has specifically stated that he does not dispute that Akron Thermal faces a financial emergency and that, without emergency rate relief, Akron Thermal will be financially imperiled and its ability to render service will be impaired.<sup>31</sup> Mr. Puican also specifically stated that he agreed with Ms. Stott's revenue shortfall calculation.<sup>32</sup> Thus, although there are several disputed issues that the Commission must decide in ruling on applications now before it, whether Akron Thermal has met the criteria applied by the Commission for evaluating emergency rate increase applications is not one of them.

3. There will be no follow-on permanent rate case if Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate relief is denied.

In conjunction with its make-weight criticism of Akron Thermal's "unaudited assertions," Staff suggests that "(w)hat is needed is a base rate case," and goes on to state that, "(i)n the absence of fully vetted information would be obtained through a permanent rate case,"

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> Staff Ex. 6, at 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> See, e.g., Lakeland Erie Utilities Company, Case No. 86-799-WS-AEM (Opinion and Order dated August 26, 1986), at 6-7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> Tr. II, 138-139.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> Tr. II. 140.

<sup>33</sup> Staff Brief, 11.

it is not reasonable to approve emergency relief at this time.<sup>34</sup> Obviously, if the Commission were to buy into this specious argument, it would create a Catch 22 standard that no applicant for emergency rate relief could ever meet. Emergency rate increase applications are filed because the applicant utility needs immediate temporary rate relief to avert a cash flow crisis and cannot wait for a permanent rate increase application to be prepared, investigated, litigated, and decided. Staff has explicitly recognized that a Commission decision to deny Akron Thermal's application for emergency rate increase will force the company to cease operations, which would, of course, mean that the permanent rate case that Staff sees as the necessary and appropriate vehicle for examining Akron Thermal's operations and costs<sup>35</sup> will never leave the garage.

4. The Commission should not make the unprecedented decision to force a Commission-regulated public utility to cease operations based on Staff's bare assertion that turning back the system to the City represents a better alternative than granting Akron Thermal's request for emergency rate relief.

Staff concludes its discussion of the emergency rate application by suggesting that, because the City has an interim operating agreement in place with Akron Energy Systems, LLC ("AES"), a Commission decision that would force Akron Thermal to cease operations, and thereby force the company to hand the system back to the City, is the better alternative. However, as a review of the record will make clear, Staff witness Puican had never even seen, let alone read, this interim operating agreement before citing it in his rebuttal testimony for the proposition that there will be continuity of service in the event that the Commission denies Akron Thermal's emergency rate request. For those reasons previously stated, a decision by the Commission that would force Akron Thermal to cease operations even though it has met the

<sup>34</sup> Staff Brief, 13.

<sup>35</sup> Staff Brief, 13.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> Staff Brief, 13-14.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> Tr. II, 141-142.

Commission's long-standing criteria for granting emergency relief would exceed its statutory authority. For the Commission to then attempt to backstop this decision by accepting, on blind faith, the Staff's suggestion that the City-AES interim operating agreement will solve all the problems would add insult to injury.

As emphasized in Akron Thermal's initial brief, this interim operating agreement makes no mention of the rates the City would charge for service. What is clear is that this agreement, which was executed in November of 2007, was specifically intended as an "emergency" arrangement to provide an "orderly transitional protocol" in the event the bankruptcy court determined that Akron Thermal had violated the lease and that the system should be returned to the City. That triggering event did not happen. Although the interim agreement contemplates that the City and AES would ultimately enter into a "Long Term Agreement," which, among other things would result in AES purchasing the system from the City, the interim agreement specifically provides that AES will not assume or accept any responsibility in connection with the USEPA's NOVs associated with the BF Goodrich plant and that the City will hold AES harmless from any NOV-related liability resulting from AES's operation of the plant during the term of the interim arrangement.

The evidence shows that, in November 2008, Akron voters approved, by an overwhelming margin, a charter amendment that requires voter approval at a general election of any attempt by the City to sell or lease a City-owned utility. Akron Thermal will not speculate as to the outcome of such a vote, except to note that the margin by which the charter amendment passed would appear to suggest that voter approval of a sale of the steam system is not a given.

<sup>38</sup> Akron Thermal Brief, 37.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> Interim License and Operating Agreement, 3.

<sup>0 14</sup> 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>41</sup> Interim License and Operating Agreement, 7-8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>42</sup> Tr. II. 66-67.

Staff witness Puican, when asked if this charter amendment represented a potential barrier to the City's plan to transfer the system to a new operator, stated that the City could continue to operate the system indefinitely as a municipal utility, with AES providing operating services as provided in the interim agreement. However, as surely must be obvious, if the City were to operate the system as a municipal utility, it would be faced with the very same issues with respect to Boiler 32 now confronting Akron Thermal.<sup>43</sup>

Like its witness before it, the Staff, on brief, gives no consideration to whether the City has the financial wherewithal to deal with the Boiler 32, or, for that matter, with other costs and capital requirements that would arise in the normal course of operating and maintaining the system. It is no secret that the City, like many other Ohio municipalities, currently faces a huge budget deficit. Further, as Mr. Puican agreed, unless the City intends to operate the system at a loss, it will have to establish compensatory rates. Moreover, City witness Merolla testified that the City has had no discussions with UA as to how its service requirements would be met if the City were to undertake to operate the system or the rates UA could expect to be charged if the City became the service provider. Mr. Puican agreed that UA's status would impact the City's ability to meet the costs of operating the system, but that he had no way of knowing if UA would return as a customer if the City took over the system. Thus, although Staff has characterized the interim operating agreement is a reason for "optimism," The Commission cannot rely on the existence of the interim operating agreement to justify denying emergency rate relief to Akron Thermal.

<sup>43</sup> See Partial Opinion, 26.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>44</sup> Tr. II, 143-145.

<sup>45</sup> Tr II 65

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>46</sup> Tr. II. 145

<sup>47</sup> Staff Brief, 13.

5. The Staff position that Akron Thermal's financing application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS should be denied is not supported by the record, logic, or the law.

By its application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS, Akron Thermal sought approval of three promissory notes – the Creditor's Trust note, the Treasurer of the State of Ohio note, and Thermal Ventures II, L.P. ("TVII") note – which restructured Akron Thermal's indebtedness in accordance with the Plan of Reorganization approved by the bankruptcy court. In his direct testimony, Staff witness Mahmud recommended that this application be denied based on his assessment that emergency rate increase proposed by the company would be insufficient to cover the debt service obligations associated with these notes. The basis for Mr. Mahmud's recommendation could not have been more clearly stated:

To the extent Akron Thermal's cash flow projections under the Company proposed rates appear to be insufficient to meet its debt service obligations, I recommend that the Company's request for Commission approval be denied.<sup>49</sup>

In direct response to Mr. Mahmud's recommendation, the Creditor's Trust, the Treasurer of the State of Ohio, and TVII entered into a forbearance agreement with Akron Thermal that modified the schedule of repayments associated with each of the three instruments. The forbearance agreement provides that the combined installment payments due under the Creditor's Trust note and the Treasurer of the State of Ohio note will be reduced by \$100,000 per year, with 60 percent of the reduction coming from the Creditor's Trust note and 40 percent coming from the Treasurer of State of Ohio note. The agreement further provides that the one-time \$262,500 payment (principal and interest) associated with the TVII note that would have been due April 1, 2010, will not be due until the Creditor's Trust note and the Treasurer of State

<sup>48</sup> Staff Ex. 3, at 4,

<sup>49</sup> Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> App. Ex. 5, Ex. JPB(Surrebuttal)-1.

of Ohio note have been paid in full, which under the revised payment schedule, will not occur until 2015.<sup>51</sup> The forbearance agreement reduces the 2010 debt service payments to the sum of the payments due under the Creditor's Trust note and the Treasurer of State of Ohio note, or \$440,868. Moreover, the forbearance agreement does not affect Akron Thermal's right to defer the first payment under the Creditor's Trust note to February 20, 2011.<sup>52</sup> If Akron Thermal were to exercise this right, the only payment due in 2010 would be the \$177,812.67 payment on the Treasurer of the State of Ohio note due August 2010.<sup>53</sup>

There is no question that the forbearance agreement eliminated the sole stated basis for Mr. Mahmud's original recommendation that the financing application be denied. Indeed, Mr. Mahmud specifically stated that "(t)aking the restructured debt service costs into consideration, Akron Thermal's cash flow projections for 2009 under its proposed rates appear to enable Akron Thermal to meet its debt service obligations in 2010." However, on brief, Staff takes the position that, notwithstanding Mr. Mahmud's rebuttal testimony, the financing application should be denied because, without emergency relief, there would not be sufficient cash flow to cover the debt payments. This statement implies that a utility seeking emergency relief from the Commission cannot seek approval of a financing application if the associated debt service obligations cannot be met in the absence of emergency relief. Obviously, there is no such prohibition, and the Commission has, on numerous occasions, found that emergency relief is appropriate to permit the applicant utility to obtain financing on more favorable terms. Thus, it is clear that Staff's position on the financing application is based solely on its position that

<sup>51</sup> *Id.* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>52</sup> 14

<sup>53</sup> App. Ex. 5, Ex. JPB(Surrebuttal)-1, at 2.

<sup>54</sup> Staff Ex. 4, at 2, as corrected at Tr. II, 127-128.

<sup>55</sup> Staff Brief, at 9.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>56</sup> See, e.g., Dayton Power & Light Company, Case No. 80-826-EL-AEM (Opinion and Order dated November 26, 1980); Toledo Edison Company, Case No. 77-1171-EL-AEM (Opinion and Order dated December 29, 1977).

emergency rate relief should be denied and has nothing to do with whether the proposed emergency rates would be sufficient to cover Akron Thermal's debt service obligations during the period the emergency rates would remain in effect.

Staff also contends that the forbearance agreement "is not currently before the Commission," and that Akron Thermal "would need to submit a new application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS," noting that, to date, Akron Thermal has not done so.<sup>57</sup> However. Staff goes on to say that even if Akron Thermal were to file a new application, "Staff would oppose because the restructured obligation would depend on emergency relief, which Staff opposes."58 Several points bear mention.

First, Akron Thermal questions Staff's assessment that the forbearance agreement is not currently before the Commission. The financing application is clearly before the Commission by virtue of the Commission's June 17, 2009 entry consolidating all the pending Akron Thermal applications for hearing and decision. Mr. Bees' rebuttal testimony, to which the forbearance agreement is attached, was specifically denominated as being filed in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS. A new application would present no information that is not already before the Commission and which the Staff has not already reviewed. Indeed, the forbearance agreement has been fully explored at hearing. For staff to now claim that a new application must be filed in this docket to put the forbearance agreement before the Commission places form over substance, and is particularly perturbing because Staff has already stated what its position will be with respect to the agreement if a new application were filed.

Second, as the Commission well knows from the flurry of activity in this docket that followed the filing of Mr. Bees' rebuttal testimony, a controversy has arisen between the City

<sup>Staff Brief, 9.
Staff Brief, 9-10.</sup> 

and the Trustee of the Creditor's Trust regarding the authority of the Trustee to enter into the forbearance agreement. This matter is now before the bankruptcy court. Thus, even if the Commission were to conclude that a new application is required, it would be premature for Akron Thermal to file the application before the bankruptcy court rules.

In so stating, Akron Thermal in no way intends to suggest that the Commission cannot rule on the emergency rate application until the issue regarding the Trustee's authority is resolved by the bankruptcy court. The authority of the Treasurer of State of Ohio and TVII to enter into a forbearance agreement is not in issue, and it is clearly in the interest of all three note holders to take whatever action is necessary to increase the likelihood that they will be paid. Indeed, it was Mr. Bees that initially pointed out in direct testimony filed before the first round of Staff testimony that the initial debt service payments were beyond the horizon of the cash flow projections submitted by Akron Thermal witness Stott, which were intended to demonstrate the immediate need for emergency rate relief.<sup>59</sup> As Mr. Bees explained, once the emergency increase was in place, Akron Thermal, like any prudent company, would look to restructure its debt payment obligations to permit it to meet those obligations on a timely basis. 60 When Mr. Mahmud recommended denial of the application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS in his prefiled direct testimony based on his assessment that the emergency relief requested would not produce the cash necessary for the company to meet its 2010 debt service obligations, Akron Thermal and the holders of the notes entered into the forbearance agreement to address this concern within a matter of days. As previously noted, the objective of the holders of the notes is to get paid, and, based on the speed with which they reacted to Mr. Mahmud's initial recommendation, the Commission can be quite confident that, even if the bankruptcy court were to find that the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>59</sup> App. Ex. 2, at 10. <sup>60</sup> *Id*.

Trustee did not have authority to enter into the forbearance agreement, the note holders will do everything in their power to satisfy that objective.

Finally, Staff, in anticipation of an argument that the bankruptcy court's approval of the Plan of Reorganization has preempted the Commission's authority to deny Akron Thermal's financing application, points to Section 15.2 of the Plan of Reorganization, which provides as follows:

The PUCO will retain jurisdiction over any rate change to be requested by Debtor, and all other matters otherwise within the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio ("PUCO").<sup>61</sup>

Akron Thermal does not dispute that the Commission has jurisdiction over its rates, but Staff's reliance on the second phrase of this sentence as a basis for its authority over the financing application simply begs the question. If, under the law, the bankruptcy court's approval of the notes in question has preempted the Commission's authority to approve the notes, approval of the notes is not a matter "otherwise within" the Commission's jurisdiction. As argued by the Trustee in his motion to intervene, the case law is quite clear that, where a plan of reorganization provides for restructuring of a debtor's liabilities, a federal bankruptcy court's approval of the restructuring preempts state statutes that would normally require state regulatory commission approval of the debtor's restructuring. <sup>62</sup> Indeed, the Staff position that the Commission's authority to approve the restructured debt obligations is unaffected by the bankruptcy court's approval of the Plan of Reorganization creates the very outcome the federal preemption doctrine is designed to prevent – an impenetrable conflict between the decision of the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>61</sup> App. Ex. 2, Ex. JPB-1, at 35.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>62</sup> See Public Svc. Co. of New Hampshire v. State of New Hampshire (In re Public Svc. Co. of New Hampshire), 108 B.R. 854 (D.N.H. 1989). Although this opinion is quite lengthy, it contains a scholarly analysis that squarely addresses the very argument raised by Staff.

bankruptcy court and the decision of the state regulatory agency. Further, Staff has obviously not considered the ramifications of its position.

What is the status of the promissory notes if the Commission denies Akron Thermal's financing application? Staff apparently believes that, in the absence of Commission approval, the notes are null and void. If that were true, Staff's concern regarding the ability of Akron Thermal to service the associated debt under the proposed emergency rates (or on an ongoing basis under the rates that could be justified in the follow-on permanent rate case) would become moot. Although the Commission retains authority over Akron Thermal's rates, the preemption doctrine clearly precludes the Commission from undoing the debt restructuring provisions of the Plan of Reorganization approved by the bankruptcy court by denying approval of Akron Thermal's application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS.

#### B. CITY BRIEF

1. Although the City and Akron Thermal agree upon the standards that must be met by a utility seeking emergency rate relief, the City would have the Commission apply those standards in a manner that is inconsistent with long-standing Commission precedent.

Akron Thermal and City agree with respect to the criteria to be applied by the Commission in evaluating Akron Thermal's emergency rate increase application. <sup>63</sup> In view of the City's relentless campaign to oust Akron Thermal, any point of agreement between Akron Thermal and the City is worthy of note. However, contrary to the arguments advanced by the City in its brief, it is clear that Akron Thermal has met those standards. Indeed, none of the City's arguments is persuasive.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>63</sup> Compare City Brief, 8-9 with Akron Thermal Brief, 15-17.

First, despite the evidence showing that if emergency rate relief is not granted, Akron Thermal will be financially imperiled, the City actually argues that there is no emergency present. He City makes this remarkable assertion based on the notion that Akron Thermal was aware of the possibility that UA might leave the system. Thus, the City maintains that, because it was foreseeable that UA might leave the system, the loss of the UA load cannot be considered to be an emergency. Of course, this argument is ridiculous. An earthquake is foreseeable, but that would not render the actual occurrence consequences of an earthquake anything less than an emergency. As fully described in Akron Thermal's initial brief, the actual emergency that occurred is that Akron Thermal lost its largest customer and largest source of revenue. In order to continue operations, Akron Thermal requires immediate rate relief to replace the lost revenue. Not only is this an emergency in any normal sense of the word, but, as noted in Akron Thermal's initial brief, the Commission has uniformly held that a negative cash flow situation that leaves the applicant unable to pay its operating expenses constitutes an emergency.

Second, the City argues that the rate relief requested is not the minimal amount necessary to avert or relieve the emergency. However, this argument is inconsistent with positions taken by the City elsewhere in its brief. On the one hand, the City argues that the amount requested should be lower because it cannot understand the decision to shut down Boiler 32. On the other hand, the City argues elsewhere that the rate increase is insufficient to permit Akron Thermal to meet its obligations. The City also argues that the relief requested is not the minimal amount required to avert the emergency based on some of Mr. Bees answers to questions posed by the attorney examiner. The City further argues that the rate relief requested will not solve the

-

<sup>64</sup> City Brief, 11-12.

<sup>65</sup> Akron Thermal Brief, 16.

<sup>66</sup> City Brief, 13.

<sup>67</sup> City Brief, 5.

problem of UA's departure because, like the Staff, the City believes that a death spiral will be created by other customers exiting the system in response to the rate increase. All these arguments are wrong.

As to the decision to shut down Boiler 32, Akron Thermal's testimony is clear that this decision was, in fact, the least-cost option. Indeed, the situation that drove that conclusion would be exactly the same whether Akron Thermal was operating the system or any other party was operating the system. To briefly summarize, Boiler 32 is currently the subject of an NOV from the USEPA. It would require a significant capital investment to put in place the pollution control technology demanded by the USEPA. However, with the departure of UA, the Boiler 32 capacity is no longer needed to serve the load of the remaining customers. Further, notwithstanding Akron Thermal's belief that its position that no new equipment is required is meritorious, it would cost a considerable amount of money to continue to fight and litigate with USEPA over the allegations in the NOV. In view of these factors, the analysis conducted by Akron Thermal, as described by its witnesses, led to the conclusion that shutting down Boiler 32 was the most prudent course. 68 With the rate increase granted, Akron Thermal will have the opportunity to continue operations. Thus, despite City's professed difficulty in understanding the situation – a situation that the City itself would face if the Commission forces Akron Thermal to turn back the system to the City - the record is clear that shutting down Boiler 32 is, in fact, the least-cost option.

Further, the City cites the testimony of Mr. Bees in response to questions from the bench in support of its argument that Akron Thermal is seeking more than the minimum amount of

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>68</sup> As for the shutdown possibly being temporary, if UA suffers an outage on its own equipment in the middle of the next heating season, that circumstance alone could bring UA back on to the system. If this were to occur, the emergency would also be alleviated, and, as Akron Thermal noted, it would no longer seek to collect the increased revenue being requested in this case.

relate relief required to avert the emergency. However, Mr. Bees' testimony on this point is clear. As he explained, Akron Thermal witness Stott's analysis of the amount of temporary rate relief required to avert the emergency is a bare-bones estimate of the amount necessary to enable Akron Thermal to meet its operating expenses, and includes no lost-profit element. When the Attorney Examiner asked if Akron Thermal could continue operating if it received only 50 percent of the amount requested, Mr. Bees said no, it would not be able to do so. However, Mr. Bees also acknowledged that, if the Commission granted some amount of revenue increase that was not appreciably less than that requested, Akron Thermal would be required to review the order, review its operations, and decide whether there was any way it could continue to operate based on the relief granted. The City's suggestion that this rational, understandable response somehow signals that the amount of Akron Thermal's emergency rate request exceeds the amount necessary to avert the emergency is ludicrous on its face, as is the City's suggestion that the fact that Akron Thermal offered a significant reduction in its current rates to UA in an attempt to retain UA as customer somehow means that its request for emergency rate relief is overstated. 69

As previously indicated in response to the Staff's death spiral argument, there is no indication in this record of the rates the City would charge if Akron Thermal is forced to cease operations and turn back the system to the City. Indeed, the ultimate irony here is that, based on the mere possibility of a death spiral, the Staff and the City ask for Akron Thermal's immediate execution, notwithstanding that this record contains no information regarding the rates the City

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>69</sup> The City also argues that because Akron Thermal offered UA a discount to stay on the system, it should be prevented from recouping the full amount of revenue lost by its departure. City Brief, 13. This ignores that, in calculating the amount necessary to avert the emergency, Akron Thermal witness Stott estimated the return component of the rates charged UA under its contract and eliminated that component in calculating the amount of rate relief necessary to replace the UA revenue stream. App. Ex. 4, at 9.

would charge if it were to take over the operation of the system as a result of Akron Thermal's demise.

Finally, with respect to the standard that provides that the Commission will not grant emergency rate relief if the emergency application was intended to circumvent, and as a substitute for, permanent rate relief, the City contends that Akron Thermal's emergency application, is, in fact intended as a substitute for a permanent rate increase application. The City's argument is based on the notion that Akron Thermal has not taken the actions the City believes would be expected from a utility that intended to file a permanent rate increase application. The Leaving aside the fact that the Akron Thermal personnel that will be involved in preparing the permanent rate application have been devoting their efforts to attempting to secure the emergency relief that is necessary to avert the cash flow crisis that Akron Thermal now faces, the City fails to draw a logical connection between its perception as to the status of Akron Thermal's preparations for a permanent rate case, and the issue now before the Commission. If Akron Thermal had done everything that the City maintains should have been done to evidence its intent to file a permanent rate application, it would not change the fact that immediate emergency rate relief is required for Akron Thermal to continue to provide service to its customers. Plainly, all this has nothing to do with whether the emergency rate increase request is intended to circumvent the rate case process. The record is clear that Akron Thermal is facing an emergency right now, and that emergency rate relief is necessary to allow it to continue to provide service to its customers. Even if Akron Thermal had commenced preparation of a permanent rate increase application at the very moment it began preparing its emergency application, there is no way that a permanent rate case would have generated additional revenue in time for Akron Thermal to avert the case flow crisis it faces. Akron Thermal, in fact, has

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>70</sup> City Brief, 17-18.

every intention to file a permanent rate application, and has indicated that it will file its notice of intent by September 1, 2009. The fact that it has not yet done so in no way shows that the emergency rate application was intended to circumvent the and as a substitute for permanent rate relief.

Beyond these key legal issues, the City also raises of number of misleading ancillary points, a few of which require a response.

2. The City's retroactive ratemaking argument ignores the basis upon which the amount of Akron Thermal's emergency rate request was calculated.

The City argues that it would be inappropriate retroactive ratemaking "if ATLP was seeking rate relief to pay bills that ATLP did not pay." As Akron Thermal understands it, this argument goes to the debt service obligations associated with the notes that are the subject of the application in Case No. 09-414-HT-AIS, which the City says cannot be recovered through rates absent a Commission order establishing a regulatory asset without violating restrictions against retroactive ratemaking. Among the several flaws in this argument, the most important is that the amount of the emergency relief requested by Akron Thermal is the minimum amount necessary for Akron Thermal to pay its current operating expenses and continue to provide service to its customers. It was the Staff that introduced the ability of Akron Thermal to service its debt under the proposed increase into the equation. Akron Thermal answered that concern by orchestrating the forbearance agreement, not by upping the amount of its rate request. Further, unlike permanent rate increases, emergency rate relief is not based on a Section 4909.15, Revised Code, revenue requirements analysis. The amount of an emergency rate request is based on the rate relief necessary to avert the cash flow crisis confronting the applicant utility. Akron Thermal's

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> City Brief, 3, n. 4.

emergency request, which contains no component for debt service or lost profits, is consistent with that standard.

3. The City's argument that Akron Thermal failed to secure all necessary

Commission approvals that were a condition to the Plan of Reorganization becoming effective is without merit.

On brief, the City continues to rely on Section 13.2(b) of the Plan of Reorganization to suggest that Akron Thermal has failed to comply with the conditions of the Plan of Reorganization by failing to secure Commission approvals of the promissory notes and the Canal Place contract modification prior to securing confirmation of the Plan of Reorganization from the bankruptcy court. This argument is based on a fundamental misunderstanding of the import of Section 13.2. The point that seems lost upon the City is that this section deals with the conditions precedent to the Effective Date of the Plan of Reorganization. The bankruptcy court approved the Plan of Reorganization, including the plan's Effective Date of February 20, 2009, thereby signifying that all conditions precedent to the Effective Date had been satisfied or waived. Further, Akron Thermal's earlier response to the Staff argument with respect to Section 15.2 of the Plan of Reorganization applies with equal force here as well.

4. Akron Thermal currently has no special contracts that have not either been approved by the Commission or filed with the Commission for approval.

Never missing an opportunity to cast aspersions on Akron Thermal, the City accuses Akron Thermal of routinely ignoring its obligation to file special contracts with the Commission approval. Akron Thermal acknowledges that, from time to time, it has had arrangements with customers that provided for service at other than tariff rates, and further acknowledges that certain of those arrangements should have been submitted to the Commission approval.

<sup>72</sup> City Brief, 4.

However, Akron Thermal currently has no special contracts that have not either been approved by the Commission or filed with the Commission for approval. At this juncture, Akron Thermal has only five customers that are not served at tariff: Children's Hospital, Canal Place, Summa, Rogers Industrial Products ("Rogers"), and Canal Park Condominium. The Children's Hospital contract and the modification to the previously approved Canal Place are before the Commission in this proceeding. As previously noted, the application for approval of the Summa contract has been filed for approval this date. The Rogers contract and the Canal Park Condominium contract predated Akron Thermal's operation of the system and were assigned by the City to Akron Thermal under the terms of the operating lease agreement entered into by the City and Akron Thermal in 1997. The operating lease agreement itself was submitted to the Commission for approval in Case No. 97- 1059-HT-AIS. Thus, Akron Thermal did not believe that it was not required to submit individual applications for approval of these contracts, particularly because it was bound by the operating lease agreement to honor them in any event.

The Canal Park Condominium contract presents something of a unique situation.

Although, as City witness Bowser correctly points out, this contract, which was due to expire in September 2009 was rejected in the bankruptcy proceeding, 74 moving the individual residents of the condominium to tariff would have required installing meters for each unit at a cost that would have been prohibitive. Thus, Akron Thermal, by its application in Case No. 09-315-HT-ATA, sought approval of a tariff amendment to provide for a reasonable basis for billing these customers without the need for installing metering. Contrary to the City's reading of the language in the application in that case, Akron Thermal did meet with the condominium association board members after it emerged from bankruptcy to explain the situation, and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>73</sup> Tr. I, 129.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> City Ex. 2, at 8-9

indicated that, under the circumstances, it would continue to provide service to the condominium residents under the terms of the prior contract until September 2009 when the contract would have expired.

### C. SUMMIT COUNTY BRIEF

1. Section 4909.154, Revised Code, has no application in this setting.

Summit County opens its brief by citing Section 4909.154, Revised Code, for the proposition that the Commission cannot "allow operating and maintenance expenses incurred by management policies or administrative practices that the Commission considers imprudent." Then, without any further reference to this statute, Summit County cites the testimony of Staff witness Mahmud as indicating that Akron Thermal is in a "precarious financial position," and the testimony of Staff witness Puican indicating his concern regarding Akron Thermal's long-term viability, <sup>77</sup> leaving the reader to guess at the purpose of its reference to Section 4909.154, Revised Code.

As the Commission well knows, Section 4909.154, Revised Code, is typically invoked in determining the revenue requirement in a permanent rate case as the basis for disallowing operation and maintenance expenses that the Commission deems to have been imprudently incurred. In Case No. 05-05-HT-AIR, the Section 4909.18, Revised Code, rate proceeding in which Akron Thermal's current tariff rates were established, the Commission, in granting the full amount of the rate increase requested by the company, did not disallow any operation or maintenance expenses on the ground that they were imprudently incurred. In this case, as in any Section 4909.16, Revised Code, emergency rate case, the issue is the level of additional temporary revenues required by the utility to avert the financial emergency. The financial

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>75</sup> Summit County Brief, 2.

<sup>&</sup>quot; Id

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>77</sup> Summit County Brief, 3.

emergency now confronting Akron Thermal was created by the loss of the UA load. No party to this proceeding, Summit County included, has contended that the emergency was created by increases in operating and maintenance expenses that were incurred as a result of imprudent management practices of Akron Thermal.

Even assuming, for the sake of argument, that Section 4909.154, Revised Code, has some application in emergency rate proceedings, it could only conceivably come into play in connection with the evaluation of whether the emergency relief requested is the minimum amount necessary to avert the emergency. However, in this case, although Akron Thermal's decision to stop using Boiler 32 in response to UA's departure drew considerable attention during the hearing, no party to the proceeding, Summit County included, has effectively challenged Akron Thermal's conclusion that this decision represents the least-cost option available to the company. Thus, Summit County's reliance on Section 4909.154, Revised Code, as a ground for denying emergency rate relief – if, indeed, that is the purpose for which it was cited – is totally misplaced.

2. The Section 4905.22, Revised Code, requirement that the rates charged by a utility be "shall be just and reasonable" does not open the door to a finding by the Commission that proposed rates are unjust and unreasonable simply by virtue of the fact that the proposed rates are substantially higher than the utility's current rates.

Summit County next argues that the proposed rate increase, due to its magnitude, is not just and reasonable and that, therefore, the proposed rates violate the Section 4905.22, Revised Code requirement that rates charged by a utility "shall be just and reasonable." The obvious flaw in Summit County's argument is that the question of whether rates are just and reasonable cannot be answered in a vacuum. Rather, this is a determination that must be made with

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>78</sup> Summit County Brief, 3-4.

reference to the various statutes that govern utility rates, such as, for example, the antidiscrimination provisions of Sections 4905.32 and 4905.35, Revised Code. There is no statute
that provides that the Commission may deem proposed rates to be unjust and unreasonable
simply because they are perceived to be "too high" when compared to current rates. Indeed, this
Commission, in evaluating competing rate design proposals, has expressly acknowledged that it
"is not bound by any statutory requirement relating to the principle of gradualism." Further, as
noted in Akron Thermal's initial brief, the Supreme Court of Ohio has squarely held that, in the
context of permanent rate case, rate shock concerns do not relieve the Commission from its
obligation to set rates in accordance with the statutory ratemaking formula. Clearly, the
magnitude of the emergency surcharge proposed by Akron Thermal does not mean, as Summit
County would have it, that the surcharge violates the Section 4905.22, Revised Code,
requirement that rates be just and reasonable.

Summit County also contends that, because Akron Thermal has not previously secured Commission approval of its contracts with Summa, Rogers, and Canal Park Condominium, Akron Thermal is charging those customers "a rate as determined solely by Akron Thermal," and, until the Commission approves these contract rates, "it is unknown if all Akron Thermal's customers are being charged fair and reasonable rates." Although not artfully stated, Akron Thermal assumes that the point Summit County is attempting to make is that, if the rates in these contracts were higher, the amount of the surcharge required to recover the proposed emergency rate increase might be lower, which, therefore, calls into question the reasonableness of the proposed emergency surcharge. However, there are two problems with this theory.

81 Summit County Brief, 4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> In the Matter of the Application of East Ohio Gas Company dba Dominion East Ohio, Case Nos. 07-829-GA-AIR, et al. (Entry on Rehearing dated December 19, 2008), at 13-14.

<sup>80</sup> Columbus S. Power Co. v. Pub. Util. Comm., 67 Ohio St.3d 535, 537-543 (1993)

First, both the Rogers and Canal Park Condominium contracts predated Akron Thermal's existence and were, in effect, inherited from the City when Akron Thermal began operating the system in the late 1990s. The Rogers contract, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A, is an evergreen contract that can only be terminated upon notice by the customer. The Canal Park Condominium contract, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B, was originally entered into by the City in 1984 and had a 25-year term. As previously explained, these contracts were assigned by the City to Akron Thermal under the operating lease agreement submitted to the Commission for approval in Case No. 97-1059-HT-AIS. Thus, Akron Thermal did not believe that it was required to secure additional Commission approval of these contracts by filing separate applications with the Commission. However, whether or not separate applications were required, it is clear that, under contract law, Akron Thermal had no ability to alter the terms of the contracts originally agreed to by the City and the customers in question. Thus, not only did Akron Thermal have no role in determining the rates contained in these contracts, but, under the circumstances, the fact that these contracts were not individually approved by the Commission has absolutely no bearing on the reasonableness of the proposed emergency surcharge.

Second, with respect to the Summa arrangement, the record is quite clear that, because Summa has its own steam production facilities, there is no prospect that Akron Thermal could retain Summa as a customer at a rate that was based on something other than Summa's avoided costs. Thus, as in the case of the two contracts previously discussed, the rates charged Summa were not, in fact, "determined solely by Akron Thermal," but were, at all times, limited by Summa's ability to generate its own steam. As previously indicated, Akron Thermal and Summa have recently memorialized the basis upon which the rates charged by Akron Thermal are

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>82</sup> Tr. I, 43.

established in a contract, which has now been submitted to the Commission for approval.

However, under the circumstances, the fact that the long-standing arrangement between Akron

Thermal and Summa was not previously submitted to the Commission for approval had no effect
on the amount of the emergency surcharge proposed in this case.

3. Summit County's calculation of the impact the proposed emergency increase would have on its annual cost of steam service is incorrect and grossly overstates the effect of the proposed increase.

In connection with its argument that the rates that would result under the proposed emergency increase are not just and reasonable, Summit County alleges that the proposed temporary surcharge would increase its annual steam costs from \$974,749.87 to \$3,108,971.44. To arrive at this \$3,108,971.44 figure, Summit County multiplied the 38,151.57 Mlbs consumed by Summit County in 2008 by the proposed \$81.49 surcharge. However, the proposed emergency surcharge has been designed as an adder to the demand charge component of Akron Thermal's rates, not as surcharge on total usage. Thus, Summit County's calculation does not accurately portray the impact of the emergency increase on its total annual costs for steam service.

The steam tariff approved by the Commission in Case No. 05-05-HT-AIR has three separate components, an eight-step declining block usage rate, a demand charge, and a gross receipts tax multiplier of 1.0498, which is applied to total of the consumption charge and demand charge. The demand charge is calculated by multiplying the demand – defined in the tariff as the highest monthly steam usage in Mlbs. for prior twelve months – by \$33.66 and dividing the product by 12. Summit County has eleven steam accounts with Akron Thermal. Consumption levels vary by month for each account, so, the usage charge component of Summit County's

<sup>83</sup> Summit County Brief, 4.

Akron Thermal P.U.C.O. No. 2, First Revised Sheet No. 13 and 14.

monthly bills depends not on the total volumes consumed, but on the usage blocks in which the consumption of the various accounts falls. In addition, the demand to which the demand rate is applied is obviously different for each account, so the monthly demand charge component of the bill is also different for each account. Thus, to calculate the impact of the proposed emergency demand surcharge on Summit County's annual cost of steam service, one must perform an account-by-account analysis to recalculate the monthly demand charge component for each account by adding the amount of the surcharge to the current demand charge and by applying the gross receipts tax multiplier to the resulting total of the usage and demand charges. The calculations are set forth in Attachment C to this brief.

Summit County's actual 2008 cost for steam service, by month and by account, is shown in the revenue analysis set forth on pages 2 through 5 of Attachment C. This analysis produces the \$974,749.87 cited in Summit County's brief as its current annual cost of steam service. The proposed demand surcharge of \$81.49, when added to the current demand rate of \$33.66 per Mlb., produces a total demand rate of \$115.15 per Mlb. of demand. The revenue analysis set out in pages 6 through 9 of Attachment C shows the proforma results of applying the proposed demand surcharge to the 2008 monthly demands of each account. After applying the gross receipts tax multiplier, the proforma monthly totals sum to an annual total cost for steam service to Summit County of \$1,548,304.27, as opposed to the \$3,108,971.44 calculated by Summit County, which represents an increase of \$573,554.85.

The results of the 2008 actual and the proforma revenue analyses are carried forward, respectively, to the first two schedules on the first page of Attachment C, which compare the average cost of steam service to Summit County at the present and proposed demand rates expressed on a per Mlb. of usage basis. The third schedule on the page identifies the increase in

the average cost per Mlb. of steam consumed that would result under the proposed emergency demand surcharge expressed on this same basis. As indicated in Exhibit JDS-3 to the testimony of Akron Thermal witness Stott, the average revenue increase under the proposed demand charge adder across all tariff customers is 71.6 percent. 85 However, based on the 2008 usage and demand characteristics of its eleven accounts, the average cost increase to Summit County will be just under 59 percent (\$15.03 / \$25.55 = 58.8 percent).

In correcting Summit County's calculation of the impact of the emergency rate increase to show that the effect is far less than alleged by Summit County and below the average percentage increase that would be experienced across all tariff customers, Akron Thermal in no way intends to minimize the burden the proposed emergency increase would impose on Summit County. Akron Thermal acknowledges that Summit County, like many other Ohio local governmental entities, are, indeed, facing their own financial emergencies in terms of extraordinary budget deficits. However, as explained above, this has no bearing on the issue of whether the rates charged by Akron Thermal are just and reasonable within the meaning of those terms as used in Section 4905.22, Revised Code. Further, even if, contrary to fact, the Commission were permitted to consider the impact on customers as a basis for denying a proposed rate increase, the Commission should certainly not do so without considering the repercussions of such a decision. As Summit County points out on brief, it must be able to keep its buildings heated and open to the public in order to provide necessary governmental services to its citizens.<sup>86</sup> As emphasized above, the Staff's proposed remedy of forcing Akron Thermal to cease operations based on the notion that the City can step in and provide service to Akron Thermal's current customers is based on an interim operating agreement between the City and

App. Ex. 4, Ex. JDS-3.Summit County Brief, 5.

AES that makes no mention of the rates the City would charge customers. Although this remedy would permit the Commission to wash its hands of Akron Thermal, it offers no assurance that the rates to which Summit County would then be subjected – a matter that would no longer be subject to Commission jurisdiction – would have any appreciable impact on Summit County's ability to pay for the steam service necessary to provide essential services to its citizens.

## III. CONCLUSION

For all the foregoing reasons, as well as the reasons set forth in Akron Thermal's initial brief, the Commission should grant all pending Akron Thermal applications.

Respectfully submitted,

Barth E. Royer

Bell & Royer Co., LPA

33 South Grant Avenue

Columbus, OH 43215-3927

(614) 228-0704 - Phone

(614) 228-0201 - Fax

BarthRoyer@aol.com - Email

Thomas Mullooly
Foley & Lardner, LLP
777 East Wisconsin Avenue
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
414-297-5566 - Phone
TMullooly@foley.com - Email

Attorneys for Akron Thermal, Limited Partnership

# CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was served upon the following parties by electronic mail this 4th day of August 2009.

Barth E. Royer

Samuel C. Randazzo Gretchen J. Hummel McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 21 East State Street, 17<sup>th</sup> Floor Columbus, Ohio 43215 (614) 469-8000 (T) (614) 469-4653 (F) sam@mwncmh.com ghummel@mwncmh.com

Daniel R. Conway
Porter Wright Morris & Arthur LLP
41 South High Street
Columbus, OH 43215
dconway@porterwright.com

Glenn S. Krassen
Bricker & Eckler LLP
1375 East Ninth Street, Suite 1500
Cleveland OH 44114
gkrassen@bricker.com

E. Brett Breitschwerdt
Matthew W. Warnock
Bricker & Eckler LLP
100 South Third Street
Columbus OH 43215
BBreitschwerdt@bricker.com

Linda Murphy
Attorney for the County of Summit
Executives' Office
175 S. Main Street, 8<sup>th</sup> Floor
Akron, OH 44308
LMurphy@Summitoh.net

Thomas McNamee
Sarah Parrot
Attorney General's Section
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
180 E. Broad St., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
thomas.mcnamee@puc.state.oh.us
Sarah.parrot@puc.state.oh.us

Christopher Niekamp
Michael J. Palumbo
Bernlohr Wertz, LLP
The Nantucket Building
23 South Main Street, Third Floor
Akron, OH 44308-1822
cjn@b-wlaw.com
Michael@b-wlaw.com

Joseph F. Hutchinson, Jr. Kelly S. Burgan
Baker & Hostetler LLP
3200 National City Center
1900 East Ninth Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-3485
jhutchinson@bakerlaw.com
kburgan@bakerlaw.com



# CITY OF AKRON, OHIO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICE

# RECYCLE ENERGY SYSTEM CONTRACT FOR STEAM SERVICE

ACCOUNT NO. 22107
AKRON, OHIO Harch 16 19 93
The understaned, Rogers Industrial Prod. (hereinafter called the Customer), Ownes/Tenant of the premises located at 532 South Main Street  called the Premises), hereby contracts with the City of Akron Recycle Energy System:
For: Y Steam Service Hot/Chilled Water Service
To Be Used For: Residential Industrial Commordal Purposes
It is hereby agreed that
1. In consideration of the furnishing of steam, the Customer agrees to pay for all of said sorvices at the rates contained in the attached schedule and esade part of this contract as they are now established or may be revised, communingdo_1
<ol> <li>All Customer requests for turning-on or turning-off service to the Premises shall be made in writing and signed by the Customer or his authorized agent.</li> </ol>
<ol> <li>The Owner of the Premises to which service is provided shall be held liable for all steam charges against the Premises as the guarantor.</li> </ol>
4. Customer shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Akron Recycle Energy System applicable to steam service as amended by Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof or as they may hereafter be revised.
OWNER: Rogers Industrial Products, Inc. NAME & John R. Cole Inc.
ADDRESS 534 South Main 57.
PHONE (2/6) 535-3331
SIGNATURE SELECT OF BOYLA COMPONYS
DATE C STATE 13 1543

- It is mutually agreed and understood that, although other sections of the aforementioned Rules and Regulations may reference installation, operation, and maintenance activities as being performed by the Akron RES, the intent of the parties is that, subject to the limitations set forth herein, the RES will be responsible for such activities only up to the Promises.
- 9, Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the RES, the City of Akron and wTe Corporation of Ohio (or successor operator of the RES) from any and all claims or liabilities arising out of the supply of steam to the Premises. Customer is responsible for the installation, operation and maintenance of all steam service lines and equipment located in the Premises.
- 10. Customer's monthly billings will total the greater of the following: 1) a set minimum monthly fee of \$315.00 for usages at or below a total monthly metered usage of 50 Mibs. (hereafter referred to as Minimum Usage), or 2) the charge for the actual metered amount over the Minimum Usage at the Large Industrial Rate (See attached Schedule).
- The minimum monthly fee is subject to an annual increase, effective on December 1 of each year and is equal to the percentage rate of the United States Consumer Price Index.
- 12. The Large Industrial Rate Schedule will be subject to an annual escalation on December 1 of each year based on the higher of 1) two percent (2%) of the base rate per year, or 2) the net percentage rate increase of the East Ohio Gas Schedule 500A rate when compared to the 500A rate during the commencement year of this Agreement not to exceed five percent (5%).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

Signed and Acknowledged:

THE CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

Linda Sowa, Director Department of Public Service

Victoria X. Bredy

ROGER'S INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS

President, CEO

ATTACHMENT B

9/25/84

WHEREAS, the CITY owns, operates, and maintains certain facilities consisting of a central plant for the production and generation of steam and hot water using combustible solid waste as the principal source of fuel; and

WHEREAS, the CITY wishes to sell, and ALPHA wishes to purchase, hot water as a heat source for Phase II and Phase III of the Canal Park Condominium Project pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained hereing the parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. The CITY shall construct a system for the distribution of hot water which shall service those condominiums, said system constructed in Phases II and III of the Canal Park Condominium Project. Said distribution system shall be extended by the CITY through the use of service laterals to the edge of the dedicated right of ways at suitable locations for the servicing of the above-mentioned condominiums.

ALPHA shall purchase from the CITY all hot water service required for heating each condominium constructed in Phase II and III of the Canal Park Condominium Project.

Section 2. It is hereby agreed by the CITY and ALPHA that the agreement to supply hot water shall be in force for a period of TWENTY-FIVE (25) years from the date first mentioned above.

# Section 3. The CITY and ALPHA hereby agree to the following:

- (a) ALPHA shall install hot water equipment for space heating in all units constructed in Phases II and III of the Canal Park Condominium Project.
- (b) All heating systems beyond the hot water service valves, except any CITY metering device, shall be owned and controlled by ALPHA, and the CITY shall have no responsibility for the use, handling, or action of hot water, or return water, nor any liability for anything which may be done, happen or arise with respect to any of them on ALPHA's side of said valve.
- (c) The CITY may interrupt service for maintenance purposes:1) without notice when emergency arises, whether said

before the date shown on the bill, the gross amount, which is 5% more than the net amount, is due and payable.

- (b) Meter combination:
  The rate schedules of the City contemplate that service will be supplied to each separate premise as one customer through one meter. Steam service used by the same person, firm or corporation, delivered and measured separately, will not be combined and several premises will not be billed as one customer. More than one meter may be installed and the meters combined for billing purposes when in the opinion of the City the conditions make such metering installation necessary.
- (c) Meter failure and leakage:

  If a meter fails to register or to register accurately the amount of steam used, the bill for the billing period in which such error is discovered shall be adjusted on the basis of an estimated amount of steam used. Where leaks occur in the Customer's pipes or apparatus resulting in loss of steam or a condensation registration on meters, the Customer shall be required to make immediate repairs, but if the leak occurs beyond the point of metering, no adjustment shall be made on the billing for the period.

### 4. QUALITY OF SERVICE

The City will endeavor at all times to provide a regular and uninterrupted supply of steam and maintain pressure within reasonable limits, but the City does not warrant or guarantee uninterrupted service at specified pressures and shall not be liable for damages caused by or resulting from temporary interruptions in service, pressure variations, or from the supply or use of steam on Customer's premises.

## 5. ACCESS

The City shall have free and unrestricted access at all times to any of its equipment, apparatus or other facilities situated upon or within property owned or leased by the Customer (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Customer's Premises") and may remove any or all of such items at any time for cleaning, repair, or any other purpose. The City shall also have free and unrestricted access at any time to inspect all steam pipes, return pipes, and related apparatus of the Customer.

## 6. INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT

(a) Installation by the City:
The City shall install and maintain at its own expenses one standard steam service to the property line of each customer, and shall also

install and maintain a service valve. Any change of service location or equipment made at the request of the customer shall be paid for by the customer.

- (b) Equipment shall remain City's property:
  All equipment placed in or on the Customer's Premises by the City for
  the purpose of providing steam service unless otherwise expressly provided, shall be and remain the property of the City, and the customer
  shall exercise reasonable care to protect such property from loss or
  damage.
- (c) Easements:
  The Customer shall provide, without cost to the City, any easement in, over, under or through the Customer's Premises required by the City for the installation of the City's standard steam service and related apparatus for the purpose of providing steam service to the Customer's Premises. Any such easement shall provide for a term of not less than the term of the attached contract, and any renewals or extensions thereof, and shall further provide for the City's ingress and egress for maintenance, repair, replacement or removal of the City's equipment, and the right, at the City's option, to abandon service lines on the Customer's Premises at the termination of any such easement or other right.
- (d) Installation by the customer: The Customer shall install pressure regulating valves on all connections to the City's steam supply when so specified by the City. The City shall have the right to require installation of new equipment or repair of the Customer's current equipment when deemed necessary for safe operation of the steam system. If such installation or repair is not made within a reasonable time, the City shall have the right to temporarily discontinue service to the Customer until such repair or installation is completed.

### 7. PROHIBITED ACTIONS

- (a) Unauthorized devices: The Customer shall not connect any device to the City's steam distribution facilities without prior written authorization from the City.
- (b) Unauthorized use of City's steam distribution facilities: No customer shall make any use of the City's facilities without prior written authorization from the City.
- (c) Source of supply: No customer shall use steam supplied by the City as an emergency or reserve service for another source of supply.
- (d) Resale:
  The steam service furnished by the City is furnished for the sole use

of the Customer and the Customer shall not sell any of such service to any other person.

### (e) Violation:

All of the foregoing actions shall constitute a misdemeanor with respect to which the City may initiate prosecution. Such right of the City shall be, however, in addition to any and all other rights and remedies to which the City may be entitled at law or in equity.

## 8. DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

Upon failure to comply with the terms and conditions of any schedule attached to or with the terms of these rules and regulations or to pay an indebtedness owing to the City, service may be discontinued and the City may remove its equipment, facilities and other property from the Customer's Premises or from any easement relating thereto. The right of the City to discontinue service under this regulation shall be in addition to any and all rights and remedies which the City may be entitled to at law or in equity.

### 9. RECONNECTION CHARGE

A charge will be made to cover the cost of discontinuing and restoring service when it has been discontinued for the Customer's failure to pay bills for service rendered or for the Customer's violation of the service agreement, and also for reconnecting service for the same Customer on the same premise within one year.

### CONDENSATE

The Customer shall, where condensate return mains may be provided, be required to pump uncontaminated condensate into the City's condensate return system at pressure sufficient to enter the City's system and to return the condensate to the Facilities, as may be determined. No contaminated condensate or condensate from process steam shall be pumped back into the return system, but shall be disposed of by the Contractor.

#### 11. TEMPORARY SERVICE

Any applicant desiring temporary service, shall, in addition to the schedule rates, pay the entire cost of installing and furnishing such temporary service and also the cost of disconnecting and removing the same.

## 12. CHANGES IN RULES AND REGULATIONS

All contracts for service are subject to change in rates, service, and in

rules and regulations, hereinafter put into effect by the City, the Public Utilities Commission, or other public authority, as provided by law.

# 13. PAST DUE ACCOUNTS.

Term net ten (10) days. Notification will be made in writing when the bill becomes ten (10) days delinquent. If payment is not received within ten (10) calendar days after notification, there will be a cut-off of steam service to the customer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in their respective names by their duly authorized officers all as of the date hereinbefore written.

WITNESSES

CITY OF AKRON

ALPHA PHI ALPHA HOMES, INC.

Approved as to form and correctness.

Director of Law

# EXHIBIT A

# CITY OF AKHON RECYCLE ENERGY SYSTEM RESIDENTIAL HOT WATER SERVICE CONTRACT

The undersigned,		(hereinafter (	
Owner), Owner of the premises loca does hereby contract with the City said premises.	of Akron for	hot water service	, Akron, Ohio located on
In consideration of the furni agrees to pay the amount of charged for said hot water service price of natural gas.	shing of said Owner may change ac	hot water service, further agrees that cording to future (	the Owner at the amount changes in the
In addition to the above, the	Owner agrees	to the following:	
<ul> <li>The Owner agrees to furnithe purpose of installing removing the meter.</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>All orders for turning ion premises must be made in his authorized agent.</li> </ul>	or turning of writing and si	f hot water service gned by the Owner	e to or
c. The Owner of the property be held liable for all ho	to which hot t water charge	water is supplied s against property	shall
d. The Owner agrees to compl the Akron City Recycle En Building Code applicable or may hereinafter be rev of the City of Akron.	ergy System. to steam servi	Sections of the Akice, as they now ex	ron ist
	Signed:	· .	(Owner)
	orginea:		(Owner)
	•		•
Accepted:	•		
AKRON CITY RECYCLE ENERGY SYSTEM		÷	
By:			
Approved as to form and correctne	5\$:		•
Director of Law / City of Akron			

The East Ohio Gas Company has determined monthly gas budget amounts for each of the four different condominium unit types in Phase I. The budget amounts are based on a gas rate of \$4.965/MCF plus a monthly service charge of \$4.28. A single average flat rate amount is to be charged to all condominium owners. The table below illustrates the determinator of the average gas budget amount for Phase II and III of the development as if they were heated with gas:

٠.	Gas Budget	No. Units	Gas Revenue
Unit A	\$43.00	50	\$2,100.00
Unit B	34.00	20	680.00
Unit C	39.00	30	1,170.00
Unit D	36.00	30	1,080.00
		130	\$5,030.00/mo.

AVERAGE GAS BUDGET = \$5,030.00/130 = \$38.69

The condominiums will be using hot water for space heating only. To allow for natural gas used for domestic hot water heating, cooking gas, and gas dryers, the monthly flat rate for hot water heat is \$20.00 (twenty dollars).

This rate will be adjusted periodically to remain in competition with natural gas. However, the rate shall not be less than \$20.00. The method for adjusting the rate is to use a rate factor, equivalent to the number of MCF of gas that can be purchased with \$20.00, at a rate of \$4.965/MCF. The hot water rate will then be adjusted by multiplying the rate factor by the current price for natural gas. The rate factor is computed as follows:

$$\frac{$20.00}{$4.965/MCF} = 4.03$$

Thus, the monthly flat rate will be adjusted periodically by multiplying the current East Ohio Gas rate for residential gas by 4.03. However, the monthly flat rate shall not be less than \$20.00.

#### EXHIBIT C

# CITY OF AKRON GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING SUPPLY OF STEAM SERVICE

### 1. CONTRACT FOR SERVICE

- (a) Contract required:

  A written contract, accepted by the City, shall be required from each customer before steam service is supplied. This requirement shall apply whether the supply of service involves a new installation, the unsealing of the service valve where service has been previously supplied, or a change in the name of the Customer.
- (b) Refusal of service:

  Service may be refused to any customer in debt to the City for services previously rendered.
- (c) Denial of service due to location:
  New contracts for steam service may be rejected by the City for locations or quantities beyond the limits of adequate service from the then existing plant and distribution system.

# 2. SECURITY DEPOSIT

- (a) City may require:

  Before steam service is supplied, the City may require a cash deposit or other suitable guaranty securing the payment of bills in such amount as the City reasonably deems necessary. If at any time the City deems any cash deposit or other security to be inadequate or determines that a cash deposit or other security is required, then the Customer shall be required to furnish additional cash deposit, or to provide additional or new security or guaranty, and upon failure to do so, the City shall have the right to discontinue its service.
- (b) City may retain: The City may retain any deposit and apply the same upon bills for steam service or in payment of costs incurred in connection with any damage to City steam equipment for which the Customer may be liable.

### 3. BILLING AND METERS

(a) Billing periods:
All bills for service shall be rendered monthly based on monthly or
bi-monthly meter readings and shall be payable within ten (10) days of
the date of the monthly bill. If the net amount is not paid on or

. •			
•			•
		<b>3</b>	
ATTA	CHMENT	C	
			•
			·
	•		

# AKRON THERMAL, LP SUMMIT COUNTY REVENUE COMPARISON 2008 Actual vs. 2008 with Proposed Demand Surcharge

Customer	Customer			19,071.47         \$ 7,704.61         \$ 1,333.46         \$ 28,109.54           30,903.80         10,546.86         2,064.22         43,514.88           79,009.41         18,072.24         4,834.67         101,916.32           101,117.70         31,809.09         6,619.74         139,546.53           154,863.55         54,860.94         10,444.28         220,168.77           49,601.96         6,028.00         1,276.35         26,906.31           32,899.87         9,974.64         2,135.14         45,009.65           132,972.77         38,569.41         8,542.81         180,084.99           101,186.44         38,118.31         6,937.39         146,242.14		Avg.	
Number	Name	Milbs.	Consumption 3	Demand \$	GRT \$	Total \$	Cost/Milb.
5651	Summit County Welfare	950.50	\$ 19,071.47	\$ 7,704.61	\$ 1,333.46	\$ 28,109.54	\$ 29.57
5750	Summit County Welfare	1,558.00	30,903.80	10,546.86	2,064.22	43,514.88	27.93
7800	Summit County Courthouse	4,118.47	79,009.41	18,072.24	4,834.67	101,916.32	24.75
7900	Summit County Courthouse	5,489.08	101,117.70	31,809.09	6,619.74	139,546.53	25.42
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	8,941.73	154,863.55	54,860.94	10,444.28	220,168.77	24.62
9701	Summit County Welfare	966.00	19,601.96	6,028.00	1,276.35	26,906.31	27.85
9800	Summit County Welfare	1,646.00	32,899.87	9,974.64	2,135.14	45,009.65	27.34
9850	Summit County Welfare	7,295.79	132,972.77	38,569.41	8,542.81	180,084.99	24.68
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	5,635.00	101,186.44	38,118.31	6,937.39	146,242.14	25.95
23301	Summit County - Art Center	1,338.00	26,824.71	8,493.55	1,758.86	37,077.12	27.71
27400	Summit County - Veterans Services	213.00	4,385.67	1,495.07	292.88	6,173.62	28.98
	Total Summit County Tariff	38,151.57	\$ 702,837.35	\$ 225,672.72	\$ 46,239.80	\$ 974,749.87	\$ 25.55

Customer	Customer		2008 - Total (	With Proposed De	mand Surcharge)		Avg.	
Number	Name	Milbs.	Consumption \$	Demand \$	GRT \$	Total \$	Cost/Mib.	
5651	Summit County Welfare	950.50	\$ 19,071.47	\$ 26,357.15	\$ 2,262.33	\$ 47,690.95	\$ 50.17	
5750	Summit County Welfare	1,558.00	30,903.80	36,080.29	3,335.83	70,319.92	<b>45</b> .13	
7800	Summit County Courthouse	4,118.47	79,009.41	61,824.70	7,013.54	147,847.65	35.90	
7900	Summit County Courthouse	5,489.08	101,117.70	108,817.98	10,454.78	220,390.46	40.15	
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	8,941.73	L54,863.55	187,677.71	17,058.56	359,599.82	40.22	
9701	Summit County Welfare	966.00	19,601.96	20,621.40	2,003.14	42,226.50	43.71	
9800	Summit County Welfare	1,646,00	32,899.87	34,122.76	3,337.72	70,360.35	42.75	
9850	Summit County Welfare	7,295.79	132,972.77	131,945.12	13,192.92	278,110.81	38.12	
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	5,635.00	101,186.44	130,401.59	11,533.09	243,121.12	43.14	
23301	Summit County - Art Center	1,338.00	26,824.71	29,056.15	2,782.87	58,663.73	43.84	
27400	Summit County - Veterans Services	213.00	4,385.67	5,114.61	473.13	9,973.41	46.82	
	Total Summit County Tariff	38,151.57	\$ 702,837.35	S 772,019.46	\$ 73,447.91	\$ 1,548,304.72	\$ 40.58	

Customer	Customer		Effect o	f Proposed Deman	d Surcharge		Avg. Cost/Mlb			
Number	Name	Mlbs.	Consumption \$	Demand \$	GRT \$	Total \$	Increase			
5651	Summit County Welfare	Summit County Welfare	Summit County Welfare	5651 Summit County Welfare	-	\$ -	\$ 18,652.54	\$ 928.87	\$ 19,581.41	\$ 20.60
5750	Summit County Welfare	-		25,533.43	1,271.61	26,805.04	17.20			
7800	Summit County Courthouse	-	-	43,752.46	2,178.87	45,931.33	11.15			
7900	Summit County Courthouse	-	-	77,008.89	3,835.04	80,843.93	14.73			
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	-	-	132,816.77	6,614.28	139,431.05	15.60			
9701	Summit County Welfare	-	-	14,593.40	726.79	15,320.19	1 <b>5.8</b> 6			
9800	Summit County Welfare	-	-	24,148.12	1,202.58	25,350.70	15.41			
9850	Summit County Welfare	-	-	93,375.71	4,650.11	98,025.82	13.44			
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	_	-	92,283.28	4,595.70	96,878.98	17.19			
23301	Summit County - Art Center	-	-	20,562.60	1,024.01	21,586.61	16.13			
27400	Summit County - Veterans Services	-		3,619.54	180.25	3,799.79	17.84			
	Total Summit County Tariff	-	\$ -	\$ 546,346.74	\$ 27,208.11	\$ 573,554.85	\$ 15.03			

# AKRON THERMAL, LP ACTUAL 2008 SUMMIT COUNTY REVENUE

				Fire	Herr	Mext	New	Neo		Mouthly		
				369	200	300	400	1,000	Total	Demand	0.5498	. Total
Cust	Chatamer	Jan-	A	Miles (E)	MJbs @	Mbs @	MD+g	Mases	Cansame	Change	Great	Monthly
No.	Nume	MIDs	Demma	\$ 20.59						\$ 33.66	Ruziptz	Charges
5651	Summit County Welfare	205.94	205.84	\$ 2,059,00	\$ 2,059.90	3 -	18	3 ·	3 4,112.30	\$ 577.38	\$ 233 55	\$ 4,923.23
5750	Summik County Welfare	311.00	539.00	2,65 P.00	3,880.00	260.42			6,139.42	550.99	353.10	7,443.42
7900	Summed County Courthouse	556.70	607.28	2,059:00	3,880.00	4,677.07			10,616.07	1,703.42	613.51	12,933.00
7900	Surrenit County Counthouse	1,079.78	954.04	2,659.00	3,820 00	5,466.00	6,532.00	1,16878	19,22178	2,764,13	1,092.11	23,022.02
7950	Surmaik County Safety Bildg.	1,913.42	2,119.02	2,059.00	3,680,00	5,466.00	6,652.00	11,916.60	29,973.60	5,946.10	1,784.90	37,708.50
9701	Summat County Welfare	179.00	180.00	2,05 P.00	1,532.60				3,591.60	584.90	304 01	4,386.51
9800	Summit County Welface	285.00	421.00	2,059.00	3,589.00				5,649.00	1,180.91	340.08	7,168.99
9850	Summit County Welfer v	968.51	1,180.00	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,128.32	-	17,531.32	3,309.90	1,037.59	21,881.21
14300	Summuk County - Ohio Building	1,246.00	1,563.00	2,059.00	, 3,890.00	5,444.09	6,652 00	3,603.98	21,660.90	4,384.22	1,397.05	27,342.17
23301	Surmonit, County - Art. Center	257 00	319.05	2,859.08	3,645.80				5,104.80	894.86	298.70	6,298.38
27400	Sarvantit County - Volerant Services	44.00	45.00	\$405.56	-				905.96	126.23	51.49	1,083.59
	Month 1'otal Summit County Tariff	6,546.25	7,943.98	\$ 21,495.96	2 33,500.70	2 26,741.49	\$ 26,064.32	\$ 16,650.25	\$ 124,511.75	B 22,282.89	3 7,510.30	3 154,105.02

					First 100	N out 200	Next. 500	Next 400	Rest 1,000	Total	Billion Wally Destrained	#.D.498	Total
Cust		Customer	Feb	(8	иъ₁е	жин е	Marie:	MD:6	Mbre	Стантр	Charge	Chem.	Monthly
NA.	_	Natio	Miles	Demend	1 20.59	E 19.40	\$ 18.32	\$ 16.63	8 1465	Charge	\$ 33.66	Kecembra	Charges
5651	Summit C	Jounty Welfare	238.44	230,99	\$ 2,039.00	2 2,685.74	3	3	3	3 4,744.74	\$ 647.93	8 248.55	\$ 5,661.32
2750	Surmand C	Jounty Welfare	319 00	311.00	2,059.00	3,880.00	346.18			6,285.18	872.36	356.45	7,513.99
7200	Surrandiz C	County Courthouse	442 81	479.38	2,059.00	3,880.00	2,692.00			8,541.00	1,344.64	492.31	10,377.97
7900	Surrenait C	Country Counthouse	988 42	929.R1	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	5,129.02		16,534.02	2,608 12	953.28	20,095.42
7950	Summait C	County Safety Bidg	1,472.58	1,561.56	2,059.00	3,690.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	6,923.30	24,962.30	1,380,18	1,442.15	30,822.63
9701	Summit C	ounty Welfare	156 00	179.00	2,019 00	1,890,40				3,145.40	368.10	181.65	3,829 15
9900	Summer C	ounty Welfare	265.00	285.00	2,859.06	3,201.00	-			5,260.00	799.43	161.76	6,341 19
285 D	Surnant 🗆	ounty Welfers	1,179.61	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	2,631.29	20,688.29	3,295.41	1,199.91	25,093.61
14300	Summit C	ounty - Ohio Building	1,072.00	1,072.94	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,632.00	1,054.80	19,111.80	1,009.60	1,101.65	23,223.05
23301	Summit C	County - Art Cember	244.08	244,00	2,059.00	2,793.60			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4,852.60	684.42	275.74	5,812.76
27400	Summait C	Coulogy - Victorage Services	41.09	44.00	944.12					941.19	123.42	4R.19	1,015.89
	Month 7	ets i Summit County Tariti	6,338.94	6,460.48	\$ 21,434.19	\$ 33,646.74	\$ 24,612.10	<b>2,085.03</b>	\$ 10,400,39	\$ 114,987.53	\$ 12,177.68	£ 6631.64	\$ 139,796.79

				Pirst	·Next	Next	Next	Next		Monthly		
				10	200	369	400	1,000	Total	Demand	0.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	Mas	08	Milles 😩	Mibre	Mare	Milogo	Mhs 😸	Consump	Charge	Grou	Menthly
No.	Name	Мы	Decreased	\$ 20.5	19.40	E 1822	\$ 16.63	\$ 1465	Charge	\$ 33.66	Receipts	Change
5651	Samuelt County Welfare	124,22	230.99	\$ 2,059.0	2 459.87				\$ 2,52£.97	1 647,98	\$ 158.20	\$ 3,325.09
5750	Surroute County Welfers	275.00	321.00				-		2,454.00			
7800	Surrenak Country Counthouse	365.48	479.38	2,059.0	3,880.00	1,193.05			7,192.05	1,344.66	422.14	B,699.65
7900	Summit County Courthouse	809.72	929.81	2,059.0	1,#92.00	5,466.00	3,487.61		14,892.64	2,688,12	871.54	18,372.30
7950	Survivat County Safety Bidg	1,317.98	1,561.56	2,059.00	3,680.00	5,446.00	6,652.00	4,658.41	22,715.41	4,380.18	1,349.36	28,444 95
9701	Summit County Welfare	134.00	179.00	2,059.00	659.60				2,718.60	502,16	160.39	3,301.09
9800	Surmain County Weifare	101 09	285.00	2,059.00	19.40				2,078.40	799.43	149 32	3,021 15
9850	Surmeit County Welfare	671 42	1,142.75	3,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.09	1,254.23	-	12,659 23	1,285.41	790.QK	16,634.70
14300	Surrent County - Ohio Building	962.00	1,072,94	2,959.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,020.06		17,425.06	1,009.60	1,017 65	21,452.31
23341	Surmoul County - Art Center	201 00	244.80	2,659.00	1,959.40	•		•	4,018.40	681.42	234,24	4,937.02
27400	Surment County - Veterant Services	23.00	44.00	473.5				·	473.37	123 42	29.73	624.72
	Month Total Summit County Tariff	4,988.82	6,491.43	\$ 21,063.97	1 25,908.27	\$ 23,057.05	8 17,413.93	\$ 4,658.40	\$ 92,095.23	\$ 18,177.63	8 5/691.64	\$ 115,765.50

# AKRON THERMAL, LP ACTUAL 2008 SUMMIT COUNTY REVENUE

				First 100	14 mat . 200	Fleat 300	N sect.	Next 1,000	Total	Mouthly Persons	0.0-859	Total ·
Cust	Customer	Apr-	<b>(#</b>	Mar 6	7007166	MORA @	300-1-0	Mone	Сшанър	Clouge	Câreal	Manthly
Na.	Name	ЖЪі	Durand	\$ 20.69	\$ 19,40	S 18.22	2 16.63	3 1465	Charge	\$ 33.66	<u>Prompu</u>	Charges
5651	Summit County Wolfers	11,55	230,99	\$ 237,8)	3	1 -	1	ŝ	237.81	£ 647.23	2 44.11	\$ 929.85
5750	Surrouit County Welfare	167.00	311.00	2,059.00	1,299.80	· ·	<del> </del>	- <del></del>	1,358.80	872.36	210.71	4,441.87
7800	Surrent County Courthouse	327.21	479.38	3,059.00	3,880.60	495.77			6,434.77	1,344.66	347.42	8,164.85
7900	Summit County Courthouse	499 74	929.81	2,059.00	3,680.00	3,639.26	1		9,579.36	2,608.12	606.99	12,793.26
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg	894.00	1,561.56	2,059.00	3,880.60	5,466.00	4,889.22	•	16,291.22	4,360.18	1,029.59	21,703.99
9701	Surranit County Welfare	117 00	179.90	2,059.00	329.80	-		·	2,385.89	302.16	143.97	3,034.61
9800	Summit County Welfers	269 00	2.86, 96	2,059:00	3,278.60	-	·		5,337.60	799.43	305.62	6,442.65
9860	Summit County Welfers	372 02	1,142 75	2,059.00	3,680,60	1,326.78		•	7,265.70	1,205.41	521.47	19,992.66
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	421.00	1,072.94	2,059.00	¥,880.00	2,204.52			8,143.62	1,009.60	555 40	11,708.65
23301	Summit County - Art Center	109.00	244.00	2,059.00	174.68	-			2,233.60	644.42	145.32	3,063.34
27400	Summit County - Veterans Services	6.00	44.00	123.54					123.54	123.42	12.30	259.26
F	Month Total Summit County Teriff	3,194.32	6,480.45	18,892,35	\$ 24,493,00	\$ 13,152.45	1 (38.2	;	\$ 45,396,36	\$ 18,177.63	3 396222	\$ 83,537.25

				Fire.	Mess 240	76EC 35D	74K 40	1,080	Total	Monthly Demand	0.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	Мау		Mbs @	30b+ @	Millor 🚯	Map-168	M⊒s-e©	Consump	Charge	Gress	Monthly
No.	Neme	Мы	Demand	20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 18.72	\$ 16.53	\$ 1463	Charge	\$ 35.66	Receipts	Charges
5651	Summit County Walfare	6.49	230.99	\$ 131.63	1 -	1 -			\$ 133.43	\$ 647.93	1 38.92	\$ . 520 48
5750	Summit County Welfare		311.00			-			٠.	872.34	43.44	915 80
7800	Summit County Courthouse	230.89	479.38	2,059.00	2,539.27				4,59B.27	344.66	295.96	6,230.89
7900	Summit County Courts augu	257.05	929.81	2,059.00	3,046.77	-	-		3,101.77	2,608.12	384, 15	8,098.04
7930	Summit County Safety Bidg	346.95	1,561.56	2,059.00	910.83			• 1	2,969.83	4,380.18	365.03	7,716.04
	Summit County Welfare	110.00	179.00	2,059.00	194.00				2,253.00	502.10	137.20	2,892.30
9600	Summit County Welfere	132.00	286.00	2,059.00	232.80	-		- 1	2,291.80	799.43	193,54	3,245.17
	Summit County Welfare	431.94	1,142.75	3,059.00	3,880.00	2,403.95		-	9,342.95	3,203.41	375.11	12,123.47
	Surmit County - Ohio Building	13.00	1,072.94	267.67					267.67	3,059.60	163.21	3,440.48
	Summit County - Art Center	46.00	244 DG	947.14				•	947, 14	684.42	¥1.25	1,712.81
27400	Burnmit: County - Veterans Services	4.00	44 00	82.36		•			82.36	123.42	19.25	216.03
	Month Total Summer County Tariff	1,350.32	6,480.45	¥ 13,784,80	\$ 10,000,67	3 2,403.95	3 -		3 26,992,42	\$ 18,177.63	1 1349.46	\$ 47,419.51

				First	Next	Next	Nest	Fest		Monthly	T	
_				300	289	300	400	1,000	Total	Danuad	0.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	Jun-	CE :	Mibi@	MODE (B)	Marie	MD-:8	Miles	Constant	Charge	Crees	Monthly
No.	Neme	Miles	Demen4	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 15.22	16.53	\$ 1445	Churge	\$ 33,66	Receipts	Charges
5651	Sunamit County Welfare	0.26	230 99	\$ 535	1 ·	3 ·	1 .	3	3 5.35	8 647.53	3 32.53	\$ 6465.81
5750	Summet County Welfare	-	\$11 DO						-	872.36	43,44	915.80
	Surrant County Courthouse	139.54	479 39	2,959.00	787.08		1		2,826.08	1,344.66	247.70	4,37R46
	Summit County Courthouse	51.59	929.61	1,862.26					1,062.24	2,608.12	1/22.78	3,853.14
7950	Surmait County Safety Bldg.	170.18	1,561.36	2,059.00	1,361.49		· · · · ·		3,420,49	4,380.18	388,47	8,109:14
	Summit County Welfare		179.00	-	-		-	-	-	502.10	25.00	527.10
2800	Summit County Welfare	13.00	295.00	367,67	-	-		-	267.67	799.43	13.14	1,130.24
	Summat County Welfare	62.97	1,142.75	1,296.55					1,296.55	3,205.41	224.20	4,726.16
	Surrenit County - Ohio Building	17.00	1,072.94	\$30.03				1	330.08	3,009.60	167.31	3,526.94
	Summed County - Art Corder	19.00	244.00	391.21		-	•		379.21	684.42	53.57	1,129.20
27400	Surramit County - Voterans Services	•	44.00			,	<u> </u>			123.42	6.15	129.57
$\vdash$	Month Total Summit County Tariff	173,54	6,480.43	\$ 7,49 L65	\$ 2,138,67	٤ .	1		\$ 9,619,63	\$ 12,177.63	1 1,3420	\$ 29,141.54

## AKRON THERMAL, LP ACTUAL 2008 SUMMIT COUNTY REVENUE

		•		First	_	Rest	Test	Т	Rest	R not		Manthly	0.0498	Total
					100	200	3	•	400	1,080	Total	Denemal		
Cust	Customer	Jest	<b>15</b>	340b1 €		<b>шр∗ Ө</b>	Marie (6)	- 1	MUIDs @	M/Ans dit	Commont	Charge	Green	Monthly
N≠	Hame	Milbs	Damend	\$ 20	\$9	\$ 19.40	\$ 183	72 :	16.63	\$ 14,65	Chutge	\$ 33.66	Receipts	(Simples
اگف	Summit County Welfare		230.99	*	. 1	\$	\$ ·	7		\$ ·	<b>s</b> -	1 647.93	8 39.37	\$ 680.28
5750	Summet County Welfare		311 00					┱	-			672.36	+3.44	\$15.00
7300	Summat County Courthouse	106.47	479.38	2,059	.00	123.52		7	-		2,184.52	1,344.66	175.75	3,704.93
7,900	Summit County Courthouse	1.35	929.81	27	<b>9</b> 0		-	7		-	21.80	2,609.12	131.27	2,767.19
7450	Surrent County Safety Bldg	107.44	1,561 56	2,059	00	144.34		7			2,203.34	4,380,18	327.46	6,911.30
	Summat County Welfere	-	179.00		. T	-		П			-	502.10	25.00	527.10
9800	Summit County Welfare		285.00		7			7				799.43	39.81	839.74
9850	Suranut County Welfare	9.06	1 (42.75	196	35		-	┑			186.55	3,205.41	149.92	3,560.88
14300	Surmait County - Ohio Building	14.00	1,072.94	288	26	-		7			2,88,25	3,009.60	144.23	3,462.09
2,3501	Suranak County - Art Center	4.00	244.00	82	36		-	7			82 36	684.62,	38.19	884.97
27400	Suntrait County - Veterras Services		44.00					7	-		<u>.</u>	123.42	6.15	129.57
П								Ť						
	Marth Total Summit County Tere?	240.33	6,480.43	\$ 4,792	97	249.86	£ -	ाः	- :		\$ 4572.05	\$ 19,177.63	1,152.20	3 24,365.35

				75	100		Nuxt 200		Next. 340	Γ	Next 400		Mest. 1,000	7	ctel	T	Monthly Demand	0.0498		Total ·
Crist	Custemer	Aug		Light.			Dev De		M3-i-©		ЖЪ: В		Mar de	Ca	7407	1	Charge	Green		Monthly
Πd-	N area.	BEb:	Demand	1	20.59	*	19.40	,	1822	1	16.63	3	14.65	a	arge_	13	35.66	Receipts		Charges
5651	Summit County Welfare		230,99	5		1		\$	<del></del>	1		2		\$	=	1	647.93	\$ \$2.27	1	680.28
5750	Summit County Welfare		311.00	1	-			H		-		_				1	972,36	43.44		915.98
7:00	Surrenit County Courthouse	131.39	<b>479 38</b>	2,	052.00		608.97				-				2,667.5	7	1,344.66	199.83	Т	4,312.46
7,900	Summit County Courthouse	-	929 81	$\overline{}$			•			•	•	Т			<del></del>	┰	2,608.12	129.80	Т	2,738.00
7950	Surrenit County Safety Bldg.	0.10	1,561.56		2.06					1	•				2.0	6	4,390.1E	218.34	1	4,680.42
9701	Suranut County Welfers		179 00		•		-				-					T	502,10	25,00		527.10
9800	Summat County Welfare	· ·	285.00		·		_		<del></del>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_	· · · · ·		-	7	799.43	39.81	Т	839.24
385 Q	Surmant County Welfare	71.57	1,142.75	1,	473.6S		•			Т			,		1,473.6	3	3,203.41	231.02	T	4,912.06
	Summit County - Ohio Building	15.00	1,073.94		308.95				-				-		309.9	5T-	7,909.60	165.26		3)483.71
23301	Summit County - Art Center	1.06	244.00		20.59			_		_	-				105	9	694.42	35.11	1	740.12
27400	Summait County - Veterans Bervices		44.00		•										Ξ	T	123.42	6.15		129.57
	Month Total Summit County Tark?	219.06	6,480.43	\$ 3,	854.13	ź	608.97	*		•	<u>-</u>	1		ŝ	4,623.1	D \$	18,177.63	3 1,128.01	3	25,778.74

				Fire	Xicat	Treat.	Next	Haid		Manchly		
				100	200	308	400	1,000	Tutal	Demand	9.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	3 <b>e</b> p	-03	740≱i€	Man g	MBIG	мъне	Mare 6	Concens	Carrate	Grees	Market .
No-	Di salinge	ЖЪ	Demend	20.59	\$ 19.40	£ 18.22	16.62	\$ 14.65	Charge	£ 32.66	Receipts	Charge
5,63 L	Summit County Walfare		230.99	\$ .	1	. 2	1 .	2 .		\$ 647.93	\$ 32.27	\$ 680.20
5750	Summit County Welliere	-	911.00	·	-				-	872.36		913.80
7800	Surreait County Courtiouse	204.65	479.34	2,059.00	2,090.21	-		-	4,099.21	1,344.66	270.61	5,784.48
7,900	Summit County Counthouse	-	929.81		-				-	2,608.12	129.90	2,73R 08
7950	Starmait County Safety Bldg.	13.54	1,561 56	278.79					238.79	4,380.18	232.02	4,090.99
	Summit County Weifere		. 179.00				1	i ·		502.10	23.00	527.10
9800	Suranak County Welfare		295.00				·			799.43	39.81	H39.34
	Summait County Welfers	452.55	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,680.00	2,779,46			8,719.46	1,205.41	593.61	12,517.60
	Summat County - Ohio Building	14.00	1,072.96	288.26					298 25	3,002.60	164.23	3,462.09
23301	Summit County - Art Center	6.00	244 00	123.54			-		123.54	684.42	40.24	848.20
23400	Surmont County - Veterant Services		44 00							123.42	6.15	129.57
	Month Teral Summit County Terriff	690.74	6,480.43	\$ 4,098.50	¥ 5,910.21	\$ 1,719.46	1	\$ .	\$ 15,492.26	\$ 18,177.43	\$ 1,577.46	\$ 33,253.35

### AKRON THERMAL, LP ACTUAL 2018 SUMMIT COUNTY REVENUE

					_					والتنبية نفرجها		أوا بالمالغان والمستعين
				First	Nes	Kest	Next	Next		Mentaly		1
				160	200	300	400	1,000	Total	Demand	0.0498	Total
Çust	Customer	Oct	08	Mp₁ @	Maria	Mihi 🙉	Lillian (B.	Miles	Continue	Charge	Gross	Monthly
No.	Name	Milles	Dernand	\$ \$8.59	\$ 19.46	S 18.23	3 1663	\$ 1465	Charge	\$ 33.66	Receipts	Charges
	Summet County Welfare	12.59	230.99	\$ 259 25	\$	1	3 -	\$ .	2 259.23	3 647.99	3 45.18	3 922.34
5750	Summut County Welfare		311.00	-						872.34	43.44	985.90
7900	Suremut County Courthouse	207.45	479, \$8	2,059.00	2,084.53	-			4,149,59	1,344.66	273.31	5,761.50
7900	Superat County Courthouse	221.16	929.81	2,059.00	2,350.30			•	4,409.50	2,60# 12	349.49	7,367.10
7950	Summat County Safety Bldg	252.56	1,361.36	2,059.00	1,959.66	-			5,01≇-66	4,380.18	469,06	2,866.90
9701	Summit County Welfare	24 00	179.00	494,16					494 16	\$02.10	49.61	1,045.67
9800	Summit County Welfare	127.00	285.00	2,059.00	523 80			-	2,502.90	799.41	169.44	3,550.67
<b>985</b> 0	Summit County Welfare	793.BB	1,142,75	2,059.00	3,820.00	5,400.00	1,224.22		.14,629.22	3,205.41	888.16	18,722.79
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	78.00	1,072.94	1,604:03		-	,	-	1,606.02	3,009.60	229.06	4,845.48
23901	Surning County - Art Center	53.00	244.08	1,091 27				-	1,091.27	694.42	69.43	1,964.12
27400	Summet County - Veterans Services	8.00	44.08	164 72					1-64.72	(23 AQ	14,95	302.49
			1			_						
	Month Total Summit County Tarm	1,777,64	6,480.48	3 15,910,40	\$ 11,758.49	\$ 5,456.00	8 5,224.22	\$ -	\$ 84,399).11	\$ 18,177.63	\$ 2,518.33	\$ 38,158.04

										-		
				First	Next	N ext	net.	Next.		Monthly		
				100	200	300	+00	1,000	Total	Daymand	0.0498	Total
Cust	Curtomes	Non-	-02	Monda	MP: 6	Marri 62	Marce	Mobie)	Census	Charge	Gress	Monthly
Nα	Nume	Mbs	Demen4	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 18.22	\$ 15.63	2 1465	Charge	\$ 33.66	Receipts	Charger
							r					
	Summit County Welfers	193.27	230.99	\$ 2,059.00	\$ 1,609.44	\$ -	. 2	8	3,869.44	\$ 647.93	3 224.92	3 4,741.29
5750	Summer County Welfare	221.00	311.00	2,059 00	2,347 40	-	-	-	4,40640	872.36	262.98	5,541.64
7800	Summit County Courthouse	364.09	479.38	2,019.60	3,580,00	1,167.72			7,10472	1,344.68	420.88	1,872.26
7900	Summit County Courthouse	582.38	929.81	2,059.00	3,990.00	5,143.14		,	11,092.14	2,609.12	681.77	14,372.03
7950	Summit County Safety Bidg	930.15	1,561.56	2,059.60	3,880.00	5,466.00	5,490.39		6,895.39	4,380.18	1,059.53	22,335.09
9701	Superut County Welfine	123.00	179.00	2,019.00	446.20	-			2,505.20	502.10	149.76	3,157.06
9600	Stranut County Welfare	219.00	283.00	2,059.00	2,239.20				4,348.20	729.43	256.35	5,403.98
	Sommit County Welfere	1,175.31	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,800.00	5,466.60	6,652.00	2,568.29	20,625,29	3,205.4)	1,186.77	25,017.47
L4300	Summit County - Ohio Building	486.00	1,672.94	2,059.00	3,880.00	3,384.92			9,327 92	3,009 60	514.41	12,951.93
23301	Suranut County - Art Center	129.00	244.00	2,019.80	362.60				2,623 50	584 KQ	168,68	3,470:66
27400	Suramut County - Veterant Services	33.00	44.00	679.47		·			619 41	123.42	39.98	842.87
	Month Total Surarelt County Tard?	4,455.10	6,680.43	\$ 21,249.47	\$ 26,954,94	\$ 28,631.78	\$ 12,1-12.39	2,543.29	\$ 85,466.77	\$ 18,177.63	\$ 2,061.88	1 106,706.28

				First 100	Mest 200	7f ext.	Next 400	Flext. 1,000	Tital	Mouthly Demand	0.0400	Total
Cust No.	Customer Name	Des Milles	08 Demand	147bi@ 1 24.59	Mills @. 1 19.40	Mabar@ \$18.22	1663	M30-:46 5 14.65	Consump Charge	Charge 1 33.66	Grees Receipts	Monthly Charges
						* 11-32						
	Straine County Welfare	157.84	230.R9	\$ 2,019.00	\$ 1,122.10	\$ -	\$	\$	3 3,191.10	\$ 647.93	190.49	\$ 4,019.72
5750	Summe County Walfers	265.00	\$11.00	2,059.00	3,201.00	-			5,260.00	872.36	305.39	6,437.75
7800	Summit County Counth cuse	1,041.79	1,041,79	2,059.60	3,840.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	612.22	18,669 22	2,922.22	1,075.25	22,656.69
7900	Surrenat County Courth cuse	1,077.99	1,077 99	2,019.00	3,280 00	5,456.00	6,652.00	1,142.11	19,129.55	3,023.76	1,19672	21,350.01
7950	Suramat County Safety Bidg.	1,922.93	1,822.83	Z,059.00	3,890.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	12,054.46	30,111.46	5,113.04	1,754.18	36,978.68
9701	Summet County Welfere	123.00	179.00	2,059.00	446 20	-			2,505.20	500.10	149.76	3,157.06
9900	Summit County Welfere	256.00	285.00	2,059.00	3,026.40	-			3,045.40	759.43	293.06	6,177.89
9650	Summit County Welfare	1,102.13	1,142.75	2,039.00	3,890.00	1,466.00	5,632.00	1,494.50	19,553.50	3,203.41	1,133.39	23,892.30
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	1,257.00	1,297.00	2,019.00	3,890,00	5,466.00	6,652.00	4,351.05	22,400.05	3,614.00	1,297.10	27,343.24
23301	Stammit County - Art Center	249 00	369.00	2,019.00	3,278.60				5,337.60	754.53	303.39	6,391.54
27400	Summit County - Veberans Services	34.00	48 00	1,111.86		-			1,111.96	134.64	62.08	1,308.58
	Month Total Summit County Tariff									A AV 400 III		
	Month   mai owners County Taylif	7,466.60	7,765.35	\$ 21,701.86	3 38,474.30	27,850.00	\$ 33,260.00	\$ 19,656.78	\$ 150,402.54	3 21,613,53	\$ 1,671.01	\$ 161,707.48

CHAND TOTAL - 2009	38,151.57	\$ 742,837.55 \$ 225,672.7	72 1 46,230.80 \$ 974,749.87

				F 674.	First 200	Feet.	Nert 400	N=== 1,000	Total	Monthly Demand	4.0-694	Total
Cust	Customer Name	Jan. Milba	Ou Demand	MD+48	ND× @	Mb+6	Marin @	Mb+6	Canamp	Charge :	Green	Monthly Charges
			2-04420		6 15,40	10.11	7 2000			200.00	4	
5651	Sumant County Walfart	305.84	205.94	\$ 2,059.00	\$ 2,959.50	\$ -	1	\$ .	\$ 4,112.30	8 1,975.21	\$ 309.16	3 6,398.67
5750	Summet County Welfar	311.00	339.00	2,659.00	3,880.00	200.42	·		6,139.42	3,252.99	447.74	9,860 15
7800	Surranit County Countinuise	556 70	607.28	2,659.00	3,880.00	4,677 07	-	-	10,616.97	5,827.36	\$1B.\$8	17,262.31
7900	Surrisuit County Counts(USE	1,079.78	964,04	2,059.00	3,890.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	1,169.78	19,225.78	9,250.77	1,412.13	29,994.68
7950	Surmait County Safety PMg	1,813.42	2,119.82	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,632.00	11,916,60	23,973.60	20,341.44	2,505.09	52,620.73
97/01	Summet County Walfer	179.00	190.00	2,059.00	1,532.60				3,591.60	1,727.25	344.89	5,583.73
9800	Summet County Welfar	365.00	421.00	2,059.00	3,589.00		-	-	5,648.00	4,499,85	448.45	10,17030
9850	Summit County Walfare	968.31	1,180.00	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.08	6,128.32		17,539.32	11,323.68	1,437.05	30,293.45
14300	Surrent County - Ohio Brailling	1,246.00	1,563.00	2,059.00	3,860.00	5,465,08	6,652.00	3,603.90	21,660.90	14,998.29	1,825.63	38,434.92
23301	Summit County - Art Center	257.00	319.00	2,059.00	3,845.90				5,104.80	1,861.07	405.66	8,572.53
27400	Summit County - Veterans Services	44.00	45.00	965.96		4.			905.96	431.91	66.62	1,404.39
	Month Tetal Summit County Tariff	6,946.25	7,943.98	\$ 21,496.96	\$ 33,500.70	\$ 26,741.69	\$ 26,004.52	\$ 16,489.28	1 114,511.75	\$ 76,229.12	\$ 9,996.20	3 210,257.76

				Pest	Pest	Heat	Fleet	Next	r	Monthly		
				100	200	300	400	1,000	Total	Denend	9,0496	Total
Clast	Cintema	Pas	健	Mike @	Marie 🕸	Mbs@	1450×40	71291 (\$	Consump	Charge	Greet	Menthly
Na	Name	Milos	Dennand	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 1822	\$ 16.63	8 1465	Charge	\$ 115.15	Receipts	Charges
5651	Surprest County Welfar*	238 44	230,90	\$ 2,059.00	1 2,681.74	1 .	3 -	3 .	3 4,744,74	\$ 2,21634	2 346.67	\$ 7,307.95
5750	Summit County Walfart	319.00	311.00	2,059.00	3,#90.00	746.19	-	·	6,285.1B	2,994.30	461.62	9,731.10
7800	Summit County Courthouse	442 81	479.38	2,059.00	3,890.00	2,602.00			8,541,00	4,600.05	654 47	13,795 47
7900	Summit County Countriess	900 42	929.85	2,039.00	3,880.00				16,534.82	8,922.90	1,36712	
7950	Surramit County Safety Bldg	1,472.13	1,561.56	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	6,923.30	24,980.30	14,924.47	1,990.25	41,935.00
9701	Summet County Walfard	156 00	179.00	2,659.00	1,086.40				3,145.40	1,712.65	242.18	5,103.2
	Summit County Welfare	265 00	265.00	2,059.00	3,201.00				5,260.00	2,734.81	390.14	6,392.9
5850	Surrouit County Welfard	1,179.61	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,880 00	5,466.00	6,652.00	2,631 29	20,688.29	10,965.64	1,174.37	33,230.30
14300	Surranit County - Ohio Building	1,072.00	1,072.94	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	1,054.90	19,173.80	10,295.75	1,464.50	70,812.0
	Surramit County - Art Center	344 08	244.00	2,059.00	2,793.60				4,852.60	2,341.38	158.26	7,532.24
27400	Surnmit County - Veterans Services	41.00	44.00	844.19			-		844.19	422.22	63.07	1.329.49
	Month Tetal Summit County Teriff	4,358.86	6,480,45	9 21,434,15	\$ 33,045,74	\$ 24812.18	3 23,083,08	1 10,449,39	1 114,597,53	\$ 62,185.11	1 8823.30	10539483

				First.	P(ext	Hext	Rest	N est		Morty		
				100	200	200	400	3,000	Tetal	Demand	0.0-196	Total
Cust	CIMORAL	Mar	-OB .	MBs@	360×166	Milbe	March 65	HOH: @	Consump	Charge	Gress	Manualy
N B.	Nagara	Mari	Damand	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 1821	\$ K.63	8 1465	Charge	\$ 115,15	Beceipes	Charges
5451	Saramit County Welfer	124.22	230.99	\$ 2,059.00	\$ 459.07	-		-	1,528.97	\$ 2,216.54	\$ 276.73	\$ 4,941.73
	Surround: County Welfare	275.00	311.00	2,019.00	3,395.00		*		5,454,00	2,984,10		6,858.53
7800	Summit County Courthouse	365 48	479.38		3,880.00	1,193.05	-		7,132.05	4,600.05	584.26	12,316.36
7900	Surrenit County Counth Case	909.72	929.61	2,459.00	3,890.00	5,466.00	3,487.64		14,892.64	8,922.10	1,195.99	25,000.92
7950	Summit County Safety BMg	1,317,90	1,561.56	2,059:00	3,890.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	4,65841	22,715.41	14,984.47	1,977.45	39,577 33
5701	Summit County Welfer₹	134.00	179.00	2,039.00	659.60		-		2,718.60	1,717.65	229.97	4,657,18
9800	Summit County Walfart	101.00	285.00	2,059.00	19.40	-			2,078.40	2,734.81	239.70	5,052.91
9850	Summit County Walfard	675.42	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,980.00	5,466.00	1,254.23		12,659.23	10,965.64	1,176.93	24,801.39
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	962.00	1,072.94	2,019.00	9,880.00	5,466.00	6,020.06		17,425.06	10,295.75	1,390.50	29,101.31
23301	Surnmit County - Art Center	201 DD	244.00	2,059.00	1,959.40		-		4,018.40	2,341.38	116.72	6,676.50
27400	Surnmit County - Veterans Services	23.00	44.00	473.57					473.57	422.32	44.61	940.40
	Month Total Yummit County Tarkf	4,988,82	6,490.48	\$ 21,063.57	\$ 25,903,27	\$ 23,067,06	17,483,98	\$ 4,458.42	1 92,896,23	€ 62,245.12	\$ 7,565.22	\$ 161,56

				Flex	Mant	N ext	Nunt	PT garpt		Monthly		
				360	200	300	400	1,000	Total	Decemb	4.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	Арг	-08	Mibs	Mbs @	Mobie	Mb. @	MD-r-&	Самину	Çber#	Gress	Monthly
Na	Name	Miles	Demand	\$ 10.50	\$ 19.40	3 18:22	3 16.63	\$ 14.65	Charge	8 115.15	Receipts	Charges
=												
	Suzamit County Welfare	11.55	230.99	E 237.81		\$ .	]1 .	ъ -	\$ 237.84	2 221054		
5750	Summé County Welfers	167.60	311.00	2,059.60	1,299 90		·		3,354.00			6,652.99
7820	Summut County Counthouse	327,21	479 38	2,059.00	9,890.00	495.77			6,434.77	4,600.05	549.53	11,591.35
7900	Summit County Counthouse	499.74	929 81	2,019.00	3,890.00	3,639.26		-	9,378.25	8,922.30	921.33	19,421.89
7950	Summut County Safety Bidg.	894.00	1,561.56	2,059 00	3,8361,00	5,456.00	4,889 22	-	16,294.22	14,984.47	1,557.44	52,436,37
9701	Suramat County Welfare	117.00	179.00	2,059.00	129 90		-		2,386.80	1,717.66	204.50	4,310.95
54900	Summit County Welfare	269.00	285.00	2,059.00	3,278.60	•	·		5,337.60	2,714.81	402.01	8,474.42
9250	Summat County Welfare	372.82	1,142.75	2,019.60	3,890.00	1,326.78			7,263.78	10,963.64	907.92	19,139.54
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	431.00	1,072.94	2,059.60	3,990.00	3,204.62	-	-	8,147.63	10,295.75	912.78	19,357.65
23301	Summet County - Art Center	109.00	344 00	2,059.00	174.60		-		2,233.60	2,341.38	227.83	4,802.81
27400	Summet County - Veterana Berraces	4.00	44.00	123.54					123.54	422.22	27.19	572.94
	Month Total Surande County Terrif	3,19435	6,480.43	18.892.35	\$ 24,482,90	\$ 13,132,43	1 4,569,22		\$ 61,396,30	\$ 42,185,11	\$ 6,154,38	1 129,75429

				Plant 100	Nets. 200	Nemt. 340	Ment 400	Fest 1,000	Total	felion (k-ly Dept. etak	0.0498	Total
Cust	Custoner	Ming	6	Matter (6)	343h i 85	MIN ®	Mans do	LED-r €	Consump	Churge	Green	Month.)
Nα	Nan	Мы	Denema	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.46	\$ 18.22	\$ 16.63	\$ 1465	Charge	1 16.15	Receipts	Clusge
5651	Summit County Welline	6.49	Z30.99	\$ 133.63	3 -	ŝ	1	\$ .	1 (13.45	4 2,2(6.54	\$ 117.64	\$ 2,467.21
5750	Summst County Welfare	-	\$11 C0				-			2,984.30	148.62	3,132,92
7800	Stimmit County Counthicase	230.89	479 38	2,059.00	2,539.27				4,594.27	4,600.05	454.00	9,656.40
7900	Summit Country Counthouse	257.05	929.81	2,059.00	3,046.77		-	- :	5,105.77	9,922.30	499,48	14,726.67
7950	Surrent Courty Safety Bldg.	146.95	1,561.36	3,059.00	210.89	-			2,969.88	14,984,47	<b>894</b> , 12	18,848.42
	Summit County Welfers	110.00	179.00	2,059.00	194.00				2,753.00	1,717.65	197.74	4,168.39
6280	Summit County Welfare	112.00	295 00	2,059.00	232.90		-		2,291.80	3,734.98	250.33	1,276.94
9650	Summit County Welfare	431.94	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,690.00	2,403.95			8,342.95	10,965.64	961.57	20,270.16
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	13.00	1,072.94	267.67					267.53	10,295.75	526,06	11,089,48
23301	Summit County - Art Center	44.00	244.00	947.14			T		947.14	2,541.38	169.77	3,451.29
27400	Stammit Coerty - Veterans Services	4.00	44.00	92.36			-	ŀ	92.36	427.23	25.13	529.71
	Month Total Summit County Tarm	1,388.32	8,490.40	E 13,794,50	\$ 10,903.67	\$ 2,405.95	1 1		( 25,3%2.42	2 62125.11	\$ 4,441.66	\$ 93,612.59

								_				
				l'inst	Nest	Kest	Next	E est		Monthly		
				190	203	340	400	1,000	Total	Densed	0.0498	Total
Cust	Curtomer	JA page	*	MD-:@	145bs @.	MDs @	Miller (C)	Miller @	Consump	. Charge	Gtaps	Monthly
M a.	Name	Mits	Dentand	\$ 20,59	\$ 19.40	\$ 1822	3 16.63	\$ 1445	Charge	\$ 115.15	Roccipts	Charges
5611	Summit County Welfare	0.26	230 59	\$ 5,35	•	*	1	-	\$ 5.35	\$ 3,216.54	3 110.65	1 2,332,94
	Summet County Welfare	- 121	311 00		•	<del></del>	<del> </del>	-		2,994,30		
7800	Burnnet County Courthouse	139,54	479.38	2,059.00	167 DB			·	2,826.08	4,600.05		1,795.95
7900	Summit County Courthouse	11.59	929.81	1,062.24	-		· ·		1,067.24	8,922.30	497.23	10,481.77
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	170.18	1,561.56	2,059.00	1,361.49	-	-		3,420.49	14,994.47	916.57	19,321.57
9701	Summit County Welfare	-	179.00		•		T			1,717.65	85.54	1,803.19
9800	Statumat County Welfare	13.00	265.00	267.47	-		i		267.60	2,754.61	149.52	3,152.00
9850	Summet County Welfere	62.97	1,142.75	1,296.55	-			-	1,294.55	10,965.64	610.66	12,872.95
14300	Suramit County - Ohio Building	17.00	1,072.94	150.63			-		350.03	10,295.75	530.16	11,175.94
23301	Summet Country - Art Center	19.00	244.00	391.21			·		391.21	2,341.38	136.08	2,868.67
27400	Summit. County - Veteranu Services		44.D0	,		-				427.72	21.63	443.25
	Month Tutal Suramit County Tariff	413.54	6,490.43	\$ 7,49°L@S	\$ 2,128.57	3 -	3	š .	3 9,619.62	\$ 62,189,11	1 3,575,06	\$ 75,380.61

				First 100	Next 200	Treet Sep	Next acc	17 est 1,000	Tetal	Monthly Denistd	24408	Total
Cust	Custamer	į	Ø	Marie	Mbs @	MBb1 €	Miles (S)	Marie G	Санжан	Charge	Gross	Month)
Ma.	Name	Mibs	Demand	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 18.77	\$ 36.63	\$ 1463	Charge	\$ 115.15	Receipts	Charges
5631	Summet County Welfare		230 99	\$ -	\$	2		\$	\$	\$ 2,216.54	\$ 110.34	\$ 2,326.92
5750	Summit County Walfare		311 00			•	•			2,984,90	148.62	3,132.92
7800	Summit County Courthouse	106.47	479.38	2,059.00	125 52		·		2,184.52	4,600.05	337.87	7,122.44
7900	Summert County Counthouse	1.35	929.81	27.80	-		<del>-</del>		27.80	8,922.30	445.71	9,395.81
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	107.44	1,561.56	2,852.00	144.34				2,201.34	14,994.47	\$55.95	18,843.76
9701	Stimmit County Welfare		179 00			-			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1,717.65	83.54	1,803.19
9800	Summit County Welfare		285.00				·			2,734.81	136.19	2,971.00
985 ü	Summit County Welfare	9.06	1,142.75	196.55			· ·	-	196,55	10,965,64	555.38	11,707.57
14300	Summit County - Ohio Building	14.00	1,072 94	288.26	-	-			289.26	10,295.75	527.06	11,111.69
23301	Summit County - Art Certer	4.00	244.00	82.36	-				62.96			2,544.44
27400	Summert County - Veterans Services		44.00	•		-	L	·	-	422.72	21.45	443.25
	Month Tatal Summit County Tacill	142.31	6,488.43	\$ 4,702.97	\$ 269.56	š .	3 -	\$ -	\$ 4,972.RS	\$ 62,135.11	\$ 5,244.45	3 70,508.39

				First 100	Next 200	Next.	Nest	Rest 1,900	Total	Monthly Descrip	0.0498	Total
CIBI	CHETAGRAY	Aug	-08	Manag	Mbs &	MB4 6	Mile B	Miles (B.	Consump	Cherge	Cress	Monthly
Mo.	Name	Mhi	Denand	\$ 20.50	\$ 19.46	\$ 18.22	\$ 16.63	\$ 14.65	Charm	\$ 185.85	Recipts	Charges
565 (	Summit County Welfare		230,99	1	3 -	s .	1 .	\$ ·	3 .	\$ 2,210.34	3 110,38	1 2,326.92
5750	Summit County Welfare		311.00	-						3,994.30	149.62	3,132,92
780 à	Summit County Courthouse	131.39	479.38	2,059.00	508.97		1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2,667.97		361.95	1,629.97
	Summit County Countingues		929 81		-		-	·	-	8,922,30	444.39	\$346.69
	Summut County Safety Bidg.	0 10	1,561 56	2.06		· · · · ·	-		2.06	14,994,47	746.33	11,732,86
9701	Summit County Welfare		179 00		,		-	ī — — —		1,717.63	<b>\$5.54</b>	1,803.19
2800	Summit County Welfare	-	2:25,00				-			2.734.64	136.19	2,87 (.00
595 U	Suramit County Welfere	71.57	1,142.75	1,473.63				·	1,473.60	10,965.64	619.48	13,038.75
14300	Summest County - Ohio Building	13.00	1,072.94	308.25			<del>-</del>		709. B5	10,295.75	524.11	11,132.71
23301	Summut County - Art Center	1.00	244.00	20.59		·	-		. 20.59		177.63	2,479.66
27400	Suramit County - Veterans Services		. 44.00				-			422.22	21.03	443.25
	Month Total Summit County Tariff	30,915	6,480.45	1 1/264 [3	\$ 608.99	£ .	3		3 4,473.10	\$ 62,165,1)	\$ 8,819.50	\$ 55,977,80

				Fiest	Next	Mekt	19 (400)	Next		Menthly		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			100	200	. 360	100	1,000	Tasi	Demand	9.04/6	Total
Cua	Customer	39		Mb:@	Miles (i)	Mapries	Delipt €	WDy1 €	Consump	Charge	Gross	Monthly
Na	Name	Miles	Dentad	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 12,22	\$ 14.63	\$ 14.65	Charge	\$ 115.15	Receipus	. Charge
5651	Suramit County Welfare	- :	230.59	1	3	t .	3	1	\$	\$ 2,21654	£ 110.38	\$ 2,32690
5750	Summit County Welfare		311.00				· ·		-	2,984 30	148.62	3,132.92
	Summit County Courthouse	204.65	479.38	2,059.00	2,030.21				4,089.21	4,600.05	432.73	9,121.99
	Summit County Courthouse		929.81	-		-		T		9,922,30	444.38	9,366,63
7950	Summit County Safety Bldg.	13.54	L,561.56	278.79	-				270.79	14,984.47	760.11	16,023.37
	Strumit County Welfare		179.00						-	1,717.68	85.54	
9800	Summit County Welfare		285 00							2,734.81	136.19	2,871.00
9850	Summit County Welfare	452 55	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,880.08	2,779.46	-		9,71B46	10,965.64	999.27	29,6(4.37
	Summit County - Ohio Building	14.00	1,072.94	208.26					288.26			
	Summit County - Art Center	6.00	244.00	123.54					123 34	2,341 38	122.75	2,587.67
27400	Suramik County - Veterans Servaces	·	44,00							422.23	21 03	443.25
	Month Total Summit County Tariff	690.74	6,483,45	1 4,548.59	\$ 5,910.31	1 2,779.46	\$	3 -	\$ 13,479.26	\$ 62,785.11	\$ 3,769,63	\$ 79,452,40

			1							Manufely		
				First	Nest	Feet	Nest	Mest		1 —		
				300	200	300	409	1,000	Total	Deneal	0.0498	Total
CONT	Crestonner	94	•	100-100	30h ( 6.	LOA: @	Mar og	Mare	Commo	Charge	Circus	Monthly
No.	Hame	Mile	Demand	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 19.22	\$ 16.63	\$ 14.65	Charge	\$ 135.25	Receipts	Change
10451	Suramit County Welfare	12.59	230,99	259.23	•				\$ 259.23	\$ 1,316.54	\$ 120.39	1 3,599.06
		1237		F 677.23	,	•		•	6 639.49			
	Summit County Welfare		311.00		•			·		2,984,30	148.62	
	Surrenst County Courthouse	267.45	479 39	2,059 00	2,084.53	,		T	4,143.53	4,600.05	431.43	9,179.01
7900	Summat County Counthouse	221.16	929.81	2,019.00	2,350.50				4,409.50	8,922.10	443.92	11,995.72
7950	Summet County Set by Bldg.	252.56	1,561.56	2,059.00	2,959.66				5,018.66	14,994.47	995.16	20,999.29
9701	Suramst County Welfare	24.00	L79.00	494.16	-				494.16	1,717.65	110.15	2,321.94
59800	Summet County Welfare	127.00	295.00	2,059.00	523.00	-	-		2,523.00	2,734.81	264.82	5,582.43
9850	Suramit County Welfare	793.68	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,690.00	5,466.00	3,224.22		14,629,22	10,965,64	1,2/4.63	26,869.49
14300	Summit County - Chie Building	7800	1,072.94	1,606.02		-			1,694.02	10,295.75	552.71	12,494.48
23301	Summit County - Art Center	53.00	244,00	1,091.37		•			1,091.27	2,341.38	170.95	1,603.60
27400	Streems. County - Veterant Services	8.00	44.00	164.72		,	7		164.72	422.22	29.23	414.17
								_		4 44 44 77	2	
	Month Tetal Suramit County Tariff	1,777,64	6,490.43	£ 13,910.40	\$ 11,798.49	\$ 5,466,00	8 3,224.20	<u> </u>	\$ 34'828TI	\$ 62,196.11	\$ 4,800.90	1 100,394.12

				First	Herr	li err	Nunt	14 ext		Mouthly		
				100	200	300	400	1,000	Total	Dename	0.0498	Tetal
Cust	Customer	Men	-08	Mbie	Mibs &	MD: ©	Milbs Q	Miles 🛍	Сшили	Charge	Grest	Monthly
No.	Planne	Mbs	Demané	: 30.50	1 19.40	\$ 18.22	1 16.63	\$ 14.65	Charge	\$ 115.15	Receipts .	Charges
	Summa County Welfare	195.27		\$ 2,019.00	\$ 1,809.44	\$ -	J\$	\$ -	\$ 3,969.44			
5750	Summat County Welfare	221.00	311.00	2,059.00	2,147.40	·			4,406.40	2,984.30	368.06	7,75876
7800	Summit County Counthouse	364.09	479 38	2,059.00	3,880.00	l,167.72			7,104.72	4,600.05	5#8.00	12,249.77
7900	Summit County Courthouse	582.78	929 81	2,059.00	3,880.00	5,143.14	-		11,082.14	8,922.30	59K.22	21,000.66
7910	Surrent County Safety Bidg.	930.15	1,561.56	2,059.00	3,890.03	5,465.00	5,498.39		16,895.39	14,984.47	1,547.62	33,467.4E
9701	Summat County Welliers	123 00	179.00	2,059.00	446.20				2,505.20	1,717.65	210.30	4,433,15
9800	Summet County Weiture	218.00	285.00	2,059.00	2,289 20		-	-	4,348.20	2,734.81	32.73	7,435.74
9830	Summet County Weilers	1,175.31	1,142.75	2,859 00	3,880,00	5,466,00	6,652.00	2,358 29	20,625.29	10,963.64	1,573.23	33,164.16
14300	Summet County - Other Building	486,00	1,072.94	2,059.00	3,990.00	1,388.92			9,327.92	10,295.75	977.26	20,600:93
	Summit County - Art Center	129.00	244.00	2,059.00	502.60	· ·			2,621.60	2,341.38	247.14	5,210.14
27400	Summit County - Vehrana Services	33.00	44.00	679.47	-				679.47	422.22	14.06	1,156.55
	Month Total Sugarnit County Tariff	4,455,10	6,480.43	8 21,249.47	\$ 26,854.84	2 20,631.78	1 12,142.39	B 2,568.20	\$ 83,456.77	\$ 62,185.11	\$ 7,255,47	\$ 152,505.35

										1 12 21		
				First	Next	Next	Nex	Next	l	Monthly		
				100	200	360	+00	1,800	Total	Destrand	0.0498	Total
Cust	Customer	Dac	4	MDb: @	мы д	MB+@	MDs (B)	Man e	Connecting	Charge	Grass	ldents);
No.	Maste	Miles	Domand	\$ 20.59	\$ 19.40	\$ 18.22	\$ 16.53	\$ 14.66	Charge	\$ 115.25	Receipts	Charges
5651	Strand Couply Welfare	157,84	230.59	\$ 2,059,60	1 1,122 (0	•	-		\$ 3,181,10	\$ 2,216.54	\$ 244.80	\$ 5,666.44
	Summit County Welfare					•	<u> </u>	•				8,634,87
		265.00	311 00	2,059 00	3,201 00				5,260.00			
	Summat County Courthouse	1,041,79	1,041 79	2,059.00	3,880,00	5,466.00	6,652,00	612.22	18,689.22	9,996.#4	1,427.57	30,093.63
	Summet County Counth case	1,077.99	1,077.99	2,059.00	3,880,00	5,466.00	6,652.00	1,142.55	19,199.55	10,344.21	1,471.24	31,015.04
	Summit County Safety Bldg	1,822.63	1,822.83	2,059.00	3,880.00	1,466.00	6,632.00	12,054.46	30,111.46	17,491,57	2,370.63	49,973.66
	Summit County Welfare	123.00	179.00	2,059.00	446.20				2,505.20	1,717.65	210.15	4,433.15
9900	Summs County Welfire	256.00	295.00	2,659.60	3,026.40		·	-	5,085.40	2,734.#1	3#9.45	8,209.65
	Summit County Welfare	1,102.15	1,142.75	2,059.00	3,680 00	5,466.00	6,652.00	1,496.50	19,553.50	10,965.64	1,5 9.65	32,038.99
	Suramst County - Chie Building	1.297.00	1,297.00	2,052.00	3,880.00	5,466.00	6,652.00	4,358.05	22,400.05	12,445.80	1,735.72	36,589.57
23301	Strant Courty - Art Center	249.00	269 00	2,059.00	3,279.60				5337.60	2,588.28	394.36	8,313.24
27400	Summet County - Veterant Services	5100	48.DC	l,111.86			•		1,111.85	460.60	78.31	1,650.77
$\vdash$												
	Mosts Total Supumit County Tariff	7,466.60	7,708.35	\$ 21,701.86	3 30,474,50	\$ 27,330.00	\$ 35,260.00	\$ 19,666.79	\$ 1,52,422,94	\$ 73,939.24	\$ 10,214.84	216,639.02

GEAND TOTAL - 2008	36,151,57	 \$ 762,887.85	\$ 1,548,304.72